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3.15 The Governing Body, the Governance Committee and the Clinical 

Operations Group are authorised to establish their own committees and 
sub-committees to assist them in discharging their respective 
responsibilities.  

 
3.16 In March 2015, the Governing Body agreed to establish an additional 

formal committee which will operate from April 2015.  This will be a Joint 
Committee established with NHS England to manage the joint 
commissioning of primary care services. 

 
3.17 Details of membership and attendance for each of the committees during 

2014/15 is set out below: 
 
Somerset CCG Audit Committee Meetings 2014/15 – Attendance Record 
 

Name Member (M)/ In 
Attendance (A) 

28 May  
2014 

6 November 
2014 

25 February 
2015 

Lou Evans 
Audit Committee 
Chair 

M � � � 

Dr Ian Lewin 
Specialist Doctor 

M � X X 

Carolyn Moore 
Registered Nurse 

M � � � 

Dr Geoff Sharp 
GP Member 

M � � � 

Paul Goodwin 
Chief Finance 
Officer and 
Director of 

A �   
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Performance 
(secondment from 
September 2014) 
Alison Henly 
Interim Chief 
Finance Officer 
and Director of 
Performance and 
Acute 
Commissioning 
(with effect from 
September 2014) 

A  � � 

 
Representatives from External and Audit Internal and Counter Fraud were present at 
meetings throughout the year, with other representatives attending as required. 
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Somerset CCG COG Meetings 2014/15 – Attendance Record � = Present 

X = Apologies 

Given 
 
(V) = voting Member 
(NV) = non-voting 
Member 

 
2 

April 
2014 

 
7 

May 
2014 

 
11 
June 
2014 

 
9 

July 
2014 

 
6 

Aug 
2014 

 
3 

Sept 
2014 

 
1 
Oct 
2014 

 
5 

Nov 
2014 

 
3 

Dec 
2014 

 
7 
Jan 
2015 

 
4 

Feb 
2015 

 
4 

Mar 
2015 

Dr Rosie Benneyworth (V) 
COG Chair and Taunton 
Deane Federation 
Delegate 

� � � � � � � X � � � � 

Dr Matthew Dolman (V) 
North Sedgemoor 
Federation Delegate 

� � � � � � � X � � � � 

Dr Ed Ford (V) West 
Somerset 
Health Federation 
Delegate 

� � � � X � � � � � X � 

Dr Stephen Gardiner (V) 
Bridgwater Bay Health 
Federation Delegate 

� X X � � � X � � � � � 

Dr Emma Keane (V) East 
Mendip Federation 
Delegate 

X � � � � X X X X X X � 

Dr Sarah Pearce (V) 
Chard, Crewkerne and 
Ilminster Federation 
Delegate 

� � � � � � � � � � � � 

Dr Iain Phillips (V) South 
Somerset Federation 
Delegate 

� � � � X � X � � � � � 

Dr Geoff Sharp (V) 
Central Mendip 
Federation Delegate 

 

X 
� � X X � X � � � � � 

Dr Michael Pearce (V)  
West Mendip Federation 
Delegate 

� � � � � X � � � � � � 

Lisa Wallis (V) 
Practice Manager 
Delegate 

  � � � X � � � � � � 

David Slack (V) 
Managing Director/ 
Accountable Officer 

� � � � � � � � � � � � 

Paul Goodwin (V) 
Chief Finance Officer and 
Director of Performance 
(secondment from 
September) 

� � � � � �       

Alison Henly (V) 
Acting Chief Finance 
Officer, Director of 
Performance & Acute 
Commissioning 

       � � � � � 

Lucy Watson (V) 
Director of Quality, Safety 
and Governance 

� � � � � X � � � � X � 

Ann Anderson (V) 
Director of Clinical and 

� � � � � X � X X � � X 
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Collaborative 
Commissioning 

Clare Steel (V) Lead 
Commissioner Adults & 
Health (DASS) Somerset 
County Council 

� X X X � X � X     

Kim Curry (V) Interim 
DASS & Lead 
Commissioner for Adults 
& Health, deputizing for 
Claire Steel 

       X � X X X 

Dr Nick Bray (NV) GP & 
LMC Representative 

� � � � � X � � � � � � 

Chris Simpson (NV) 
Lay Member 

� � � � � � � � � � � � 

Dr Victoria Downing-Burn 
(NV) 
Director Strategy and 
Patient Engagement 

� X X X         

Sue Glanfield (NV) Head 
of Service Development 
and Clinical Engagement 

         � X � 

Andrew Hill (NV) Head of 
Federation 
Commissioning 

� � � � X � � � � X � X 

Dr John Trepess Taunton 
Deane General Practice 
Federation Delegate 
(Designate –NV) 

          � � 

 
 
 



 

68 

 

 
 Somerset CCG Governance Committee Meetings 2014/15 – Attendance Record � = Present 

X = Apologies 

Given 

(M) Committee member 

(A) In attendance 

14 May 

2014 

30 Jul 

2014 

29 Sep 

2014^ 

29 Oct 

2014 

11 Feb 

2015 
  

Dr Matthew Dolman (M), (Chair) 

CCG Chairman 
� X � � �   

Ann Anderson (M) 

Director of Clinical  and Collaborative Commissioning 
X � ***** **** *****   

Dr Rosie Benneyworth (M) 

Chair of Clinical Operations Group 
X � � X X  

Dr Victoria Downing-Burn (M) 

Director Strategy and Patient Engagement 
� * * * *   

Lou Evans (M) 

Governing Body Lay Member: Governance and Audit 
� X X � �   

Paul Goodwin (M) 

Chief Finance Officer and Director of Performance  

(secondment from September 2014) 

� X X ** **   

Alison Henly 

Interim Chief Finance Officer and Director of Performance 

and Acute Commissioning 
(with effect from September 2014) 

 
� X � �  

Dr Ian Lewin (M) 

Specialist Doctor 
X � � � �   

Carolyn Moore (M) 

Registered Nurse 
X � � � �   

Peter Osborne (A) 

Head of Corporate Governance 
� X X � �   
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Dr Iain Phillips (M) 

Governing Body and Clinical Operations Group GP 

Member 

*** � X � �  

David Slack (M) 

Managing Director/Accountable Officer 
� � � � �   

Karen Taylor (A) 

Head of Patient Safety and Risk Management 
� � � X �   

Eilleen Tipper (M) 

Governing Body Lay Member: PPE 
� � � � �   

Lucy Watson (M) 

Director of Quality and Patient Safety 
� � � � �   

 

* Dr Victoria Downing-Burn left the CCG in August 2014. 
** Paul Goodwin took a secondment post with NHS England from September 2014 to March 2015, Alison Henly became Interim 
Chief Finance Officer & Director of Director of Performance & Acute Commissioning 
*** Dr Iain Phillips became a member of the Governance Committee from July 2014 
**** Claire Higdon, Deputy Director of Clinical and Collaborative Commissioning attended on behalf of Ann Anderson 
***** Tim Archer, Associate Director of Strategic Planning and Joint Commissioning attended on behalf of Ann Anderson 
^ An extraordinary meeting of the Governance Committee was held on 29 September 2014 to receive and discuss a formal 
investigation report following a mental health homicide 
Sections on Cost Allocation & Setting of Charges for Information, Sickness Absence Data and External Audit are situated with the 
Finances section of the Strategic Report. 
 
Statement as to disclosure to auditors (as per minutes of the Governing Body 28 May 2015) 

• so far as each director/member is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the NHS body’s auditor is unaware, 
and  

• he/she has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a director/member in order to make themselves aware of any 
relevant audit information and to establish that the entity’s auditor is aware of that information.  

Dr Matthew Dolman 
Chair- Somerset Clinical Commissioning Group 
28 May 2015 
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4 REMUNERATION REPORT 
 
4.1 The membership and attendance at the Somerset CCG Remuneration Committee during 2014/15 is set out below: 
 

� = Present 

X = Apologies Given 

V = voting 

NV = non-voting 

20.05.14 16.07.14 17.09.14 26.03.15 

 
Lou Evans (V) 
Remuneration Committee Chair 

� � � � 

 
Eilleen Tipper (V) 
Remuneration Committee Vice Chair 

� � � � 

 
Dr Ian Lewin (V) 
Specialist Doctor 

� � � � 

 
Carolyn Moore (V) 
Registered Nurse 

� � � � 

 
David Slack (NV) 
Managing Director/ 
Accountable Officer 

� � � � 

 
Victoria Downing-Burn (NV) 
Director of Strategy and Patient Engagement 

�    

 
Marianne King (NV) 
Head of HR 

 � � � 

 
4.2 It should be noted that there were no additional persons who attended the Committee in order to provide legal advice on 

compliance with any relevant legislation.  Dr Matthew Dolman was present at the Meeting on 16 July 2014. 
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Policy on Remuneration for Senior Managers during 2014/15 
 
4.3 A benchmarking exercise was carried out across the South West to determine Senior Manager pay scales when the 

CCG became fully authorised in April 2013.  The recommendations were implemented in determining Senior Manager 
and terms and conditions of employment.  Further benchmarking exercises continue to take place with CCG’s in the 
South West to ensure that pay scales remain competitive and in line with the NHS’s current financial position.  

 
4.4 For 2014/2015 Directors pay has been reviewed against responsibilities that have changed as a result of an 

Organisational Change programme.  The CCG moved from a four directorate to a three directorate model and as a result 
Directors responsibilities changed and pay increases awarded through the CCG Remuneration Committee.   

 
4.5 Agenda for Change guidelines will be taken into consideration when assessing whether to award an inflationary increase 

to Directors.     
 
4.6 All Senior Managers are on permanent contracts with a six months’ notice period in place.  There has been one 

termination payment made and the details can be found on page 76. 
 

 

 

Signed: 

   

 

David Slack 

Managing Director 

Somerset Clinical Commissioning Group 

 

28 May 2015 
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REMUNERATION REPORT  
 

This section of the report contains details of remuneration and pension entitlements for senior managers of the Trust in line with 

Section 234B and Schedule 7A of the Companies Act. 

 

Senior managers are defined as those persons in senior positions having authority or responsibility for directing or controlling the 

major activities of the Clinical Commissioning Group.  This means those who influence the decisions of the Clinical Commissioning 

Group as a whole, rather than the decisions of individual directorates or departments.  Such persons will include advisory and lay 

members. In defining this, the scope the Clinical Commissioning Group have used is to include members of the decision making 

groups within the CCG, which the CCG  have defined as the Governing Body, excluding those members with no voting rights. 

Senior managers (excluding Lay Members) are generally employed on permanent contracts with a six month period of notice.  

 

The Clinical Commissioning Group’s Remuneration Committee is chaired by the Vice Chairman of the Governing Body.  It is the 

Remuneration Committee that determines the reward packages of Executive Directors, whilst taking account of the Pay Framework 

for Very Senior Managers (VSM) published by the Department of Health.  

 

The table below details the remuneration levels for all senior managers in the Clinical Commissioning Group. 

 

Salary Entitlements of Senior Managers 

  Total 2014/15 Total 2013/14 

  Salary  Expense 

payment 

(taxable) 

 Performance 

Pay and 

Bonuses 

Long Term 

Performance 

Pay and 

Bonuses 

All 

Pension 

Related 

Benefits 

Total Salary Expense 

payments 

(taxable) 

Performance 

Pay and 

Bonuses 

Long Term 

Performance 

Pay and 

Bonuses 

All 

Pension 

Related 

Benefits 

Total 

Name Title (band

s of 

£5,00

0) 

(rounde

d to the 

nearest 

£00) 

(bands of 

£5,000) 

(bands of 

£5,000) 

(bands of 

£2,500) 

(ban

ds of 

£5,00

0) 

(bands 

of 

£5,000) 

(rounded 

to the 

nearest 

£00) 

(bands of 

£5,000) 

(bands of 

£5,000) 

(bands of 

£2,500) 

(bands of 

£5,000) 

  £’000 £’00 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’00 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
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David Slack Managing 

Director/ 

Accountable 

Officer 

120-

125 

0 0 0 0 120-

125 

120-125 0 0 0 157.5-160 280-285 

Paul Goodwin 

(secondment 

from September 

2014) 

Chief Finance 

Officer and 

Director of 

Performance 

50-55 16 0 0 35-37.5 90-

95 

110-115 32 0 0 35-37.5 150-155 

Lucy Watson Director of 

Quality, Safety 

and Governance 

95-

100 

0 0 0 22.5-25 120-

125 

90-95 0 0 0 32.5-35 125-130 

Ann Anderson Director of 

Clinical  and 

Collaborative 

Commissioning 

95-

100 

18 0 0 20-22.5 115-

120 

90-95 0 0 0 40-42.5 130-135 

Victoria 

Downing-Burn 

(left August 

2014) 

Director of Patient 

Engagement and 

Strategy 

25-30 0 0 0 0 25-

30 

80-85 0 0 0 97.5-100 180-185 

Matthew 

Dolman 

Chair 90-95 0 0 0 7.5-10 100-

105 

75-80 0 0 0 175-177.5 255-260 

Rosemarie 

Benneyworth 

COG Chair  75-80 0 0 0 20-22.5 100-

105 

70-75 0 0 0 140-142.5 210-215 

Geoff Sharp GP 35-40 0 0 0 20-22.5 55-

60 

40-45 0 0 0 17.5-20 55-60 

Alison Henly 

(with effect from 

September 

2014) 

Interim Chief 

Finance Officer 

and Director of 

Performance and 

Acute 

Commissioning 

50-55 18 0 0 10-12.5 65-

70 

      

Iain Phillips GP 35-40 0 0 0 302.5-305 340-

345 

45-50 0 0 0 0 45-50 



 

74 

 

 

Notes: 

Dr Victoria Downing-Burn left the CCG in August 2014. 
Paul Goodwin took a secondment post with NHS England from September 2014 to March 2015. Alison Henly became Interim Chief 
Finance Officer & Director of Director of Performance & Acute Commissioning from September 2014 
Expense payments relate to Lease Cars  
Dr Ian Phillips pension figures show a larger than expected increase during the financial year. This has been checked with NHS 
Pensions who have confirmed these figures are correct. 
No senior manager waived his/her remuneration. 

No annual and long term performance related bonus payments were made to any senior managers in 2014/15. 

 
 

Senior Manager Pension Benefits 

The next table details the pension entitlements for each of the senior managers who received pensionable remuneration through 

the NHS pension scheme. 

 

Senior managers are defined as those persons in senior positions having authority or responsibility for directing or controlling the 

major activities of the Clinical Commissioning Group.  This means those who influence the decisions of the Clinical Commissioning 

Group as a whole, rather than the decisions of individual directorates or departments.  Such persons will include advisory and lay 

members. 

 

Lou Evans Lay Member 

(Vice-Chair) 

15-20 0 0 0 0 15-

20 

15-20 0 0 0 0 15-20 

Eileen Tipper Lay Member 10-15 0 0 0 0 10-

15 

10-15 0 0 0 0 10-15 

Ian Lewin Specialist Doctor 10-15 0 0 0 0 10-

15 

10-15 0 0 0 0 10-15 

Carolyn Moore Registered Nurse 10-15 0 0 0 0 10-

15 

10-15 0 0 0 0 10-15 
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Pensions Entitlement of Senior Managers 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Name 
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p
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R
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p
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p
e
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(bands of 

£2,500) 

(bands of 

£2,500) 

(bands of 

£5,000) 

(bands of 

£5,000) 

    

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

David Slack Managing Director 0-2.5 0-2.5 35-40 110-115 698 32 748 0 

Paul Goodwin 

(secondment 

from September 

2014) 

Chief Finance Officer and Director of Performance 

0-2.5 2.5-5 40-45 120-125 657 26 728 0 

Lucy Watson Director of Quality, Safety and Governance 0-2.5 2.5-5 25-30 85-90 599 56 671 0 

Ann Anderson Director of Clinical  and Collaborative 

Commissioning 
0-2.5 2.5-5 20-25 65-70 462 48 523 0 

Victoria 

Downing-Burn 

(left August 

2014) 

Director of Patient Engagement and Strategy 

0-2.5 0-2.5 10-15 40-45 191 0 197 0 

Matthew 

Dolman 

Chair 
0-2.5 2.5-5 10-15 30-35 145 19 168 0 
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Rosemarie 

Benneyworth 

COG Chair 
0-2.5 2.5-5 5-10 25-30 104 23 129 0 

Geoff Sharp GP 0-2.5 2.5-5 5-10 25-30 182 27 213 0 

Alison Henly 

(with effect from 

September 

2014) 

Interim Chief Finance Officer and Director of 

Performance and Acute Commissioning 
0-2.5 0-2.5 25-30 85-90 396 15 436 0 

Iain Phillips GP 12.5-15 40-42.5 15-20 55-60 91 256 350 0 

 

Notes: 
1. Lay members do not receive pensionable remuneration. 

2. Pensionable contributions may include more than just those from CCG employment. Where a GP is under a contract of 

service with the CCG and pays pension contributions then they are classed as ‘NHS staff (Officer)’ for pension purposes. The 

figures provided by NHS Pensions cover only the ‘Officer’ element of the GP’s pension entitlement. In 2013/14 NHS Pensions 

did not provide an ‘Officer’ only element for Dr Geoff Sharp however in providing the figures for 2014/15 NHS Pensions have 

also provided the relevant figures restated for 2013/14.  

Reporting bodies are required to disclose the relationship between the remuneration of the highest paid director in their 
organisation and the median remuneration of the organisation’s workforce. 
 
The banded remuneration of the highest paid member of the Governing Body in Somerset Clinical Commissioning Group in the 
financial year 2014/15 was £122,500 (2013/14 £122,500). This was 3.23 times (2013/14 3.02 times) the median remuneration of 
the workforce, which was £37,953 (2013/14 £40,558).  
 
In 2014/15, zero employees received remuneration in excess of the highest paid member of the Governing Body.  Remuneration 
ranged from £11,808 to £122,500 (2013/14 £5,325 to £122,500).   
 
There were two exit packages paid in 2014/15 with a total cost of £118,245, one of which related to the exit package for the 
Director of Patient Engagement and Strategy (‘115-120’ in bands of £5,000). Details of these packages are within Note 4 of the 
Annual Accounts. 
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Total remuneration includes salary, non-consolidated performance related pay, benefits in kind.  It does not include severance 
payments, employer pension contributions and the cash equivalent transfer value of pensions.   
 
The remuneration report and notes on pages 72-76 has been audited by Grant Thornton UK LLP, Somerset Clinical 
Commissioning Group’s external auditors. 
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Explanation of Key Terms used in Remuneration and Pension Reports 

Term Definition 

Annual Performance 
Related Bonuses 

Money or other assets received or receivable for the financial 
year as a result of achieving performance measures and targets 
for the period 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2015. 

Cash Equivalent 
Transfer Value 
(CETV) 

A CETV is the actuarially assessed capital value of the pension 
scheme benefits accrued by a member at a particular point in 
time.  The benefits valued are the member’s accrued benefits 
and any contingent spouse’s pension payable from the scheme.  
A CETV is a payment made by a pension scheme or 
arrangement to secure pension benefits in another pension 
scheme or arrangement when the member leaves a scheme 
and chooses to transfer the benefits accrued in their former 
scheme.  The pension figures shown relate to the benefits that 
the individual has accrued as a consequence of their total 
membership of the pension scheme, not just their service in a 
senior capacity to which disclosure applies.  The CETV figures 
and the other pension details include the value of any pension 
benefits in another scheme or arrangement which the individual 
has transferred to the NHS pension scheme.  They also include 
any additional pension benefit accrued to the member as a 
result of their purchasing additional years of pension service in 
the scheme at their own cost.  CETVs are calculated within the 
guidelines and framework prescribed by the Institute and 
Faculty of Actuaries. 
 

Employer’s 
contribution to 
stakeholder pension 

The amount that the Clinical Commissioning Group has 
contributed to individual’s stakeholder pension schemes. 

Lump sum at age 60 
related to real 
increase in pension 

The amount by which the lump sum to which an individual will 
be entitled on retirement has increased during the year 

Lump sum at age 60 
related to accrued 
pension at 31 March 
2015 

The amount of lump sum pension to which an individual will be 
entitled on retirement at the age of 60 as a result of their 
membership of the pension scheme to 31 March 2015 

Real increase in 
CETV 

This reflects the increase in CETV effectively funded by the 
employer.  It takes account of the increase in accrued pension 
due to inflation, contributions paid by the employee (including 
the value of any benefits transferred from another scheme or 
arrangement) and uses common market valuation factors for 
the start and end of the period. 
 

Real increase in 
pensions at age 60 

The amount by which the pension to which an individual will be 
entitled at the age of 60 has increased during the year 
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Total accrued 
pension at age 60 at 
31 March 2015 

The amount of annual pension to which an individual will be 
entitled on retirement at the age of 60 as a result of their 
membership of the pension scheme to 31 March 2015 

 

Remuneration of the Managing Director and Directors  
 
The remuneration of the Managing Director and Directors within the Clinical 
Commissioning Group is the responsibility of the Remuneration Committee.  The 
committee comprises four voting members and two non-voting members. 
 
The membership and attendance at the Somerset Clinical Commissioning Group 
Remuneration Committee during 2014/15 is set out below: 
 

� = Present 

X = Apologies Given 

V = voting 

NV = non-voting 

20.05.14 16.07.14 17.09.14 26.03.15 

 
Lou Evans (V) 
Remuneration Committee 
Chair 

� 
� � � 

 
Eilleen Tipper (V) 
Remuneration Committee Vice 
Chair 

� � � � 

 
Dr Ian Lewin (V) 
Specialist Doctor 

� � � � 

 
Carolyn Moore (V) 
Registered Nurse 

� � � � 

 
David Slack (NV) 
Managing Director/ 
Accountable Officer 

� � � � 

 
Victoria Downing-Burn (NV) 
Director of Strategy and 
Patient Engagement 

� - - - 

 
Marianne King (NV) 
Head of HR 

- � � � 

 
It should be noted that there were no additional persons who attended the 
Remuneration Committee to provide advice or services that materially assisted the 
committee in their consideration of any matter. Dr Matthew Dolman was present at 
the Meeting on 16 July 2014. 
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Policy on Remuneration for Senior Managers during 2014/15 and future years  
 
A benchmarking exercise was carried out across the South West to determine 
Senior Manager pay scales when the CCG became fully authorised in April 2013.  
The recommendations were implemented in determining Senior Manager and terms 
and conditions of employment.  Further benchmarking exercises continue to take 
place with CCG’s in the South West to ensure that pay scales remain competitive 
and in line with the NHS’s current financial position. 
 
For 2014/2015 Directors pay has been reviewed against responsibilities that have 
changed as a result of an Organisational Change programme.  The CCG moved 
from a four directorate to a three directorate model and as a result Directors 
responsibilities changed and pay increases awarded through the CCG Remuneration 
Committee. 
 
Agenda for Change guidelines will be taken into consideration when assessing 
whether to award an inflationary increase to Directors. 
 
Policy on Contracts 
 
The policy in respect of Senior Managers includes the appointment under full time 
contracts under NHS terms and conditions, including standard notice periods and 
termination payments.   
 
All Senior Managers are on permanent contracts with a six months’ notice period in 
place.  There has been one termination payment made and the details can be found 
on page 75. 
 
Compensation and Terms of Office 
 
NHS England have set restrictions on the payment of any compensation within the 

CCG.  There have been no compensation terms agreed by NHS England.   

 

Off-payroll Engagements 
 
Off-payroll engagement as of 31 March 2015, for more than £220 per day and that 
last longer than six months: 
 

 Number 

The number that have existed 19 

For less than one year at the time of reporting 8 

For between one and two years at the time of reporting 11 

For between two and three years at the time of reporting 0 

For between three and four years at the time of reporting 0 

For four or more years at the time of reporting 0 

 
All existing off-payroll engagements, outlined above, have at some point been 
subject to a risk based assessment as to whether assurance is required that the 
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individual is paying the right amount of tax and, where necessary, that assurance 
has been sought. 
 

 Number 

Number of new engagements, or those that reached six months 
duration between 1 April 2014 and 31 March 2015 

8 

Number of the above which include contractual clauses giving the 
Somerset Clinical Commissioning Group the right to request assurance 
in relation to income tax and National Insurance obligations 

8 

Number for whom assurance has been requested 8 

Of which, the number  

Assurance has been received 8 

Assurance has not been received 0 

Engagements terminated as a result of assurance not being received, or 
ended before assurance received 

0 

 

 Number 

Number of off-payroll engagements of Governing Body members, and/ 

or, senior officials with significant financial responsibility, during the 

financial year 

0 

Number of individuals that have been deemed “Governing Body 

members, and/ or, senior officials with significant financial 

responsibility”, during the financial year (this figure includes both off-

payroll and on-payroll engagements) 

14 

 

 

Signed: 

   

 

David Slack 

Managing Director 

Somerset Clinical Commissioning Group 

 

28 May 2015 

 
 
 
 
 



          Appendix One 
Statement of Accountable Officer’s Responsibilities  

The National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended) states that each Clinical 

Commissioning Group shall have an Accountable Officer and that Officer shall be 

appointed by the NHS Commissioning Board (NHS England).  NHS England has 

appointed the Managing Director to be the Accountable Officer of the Clinical 

Commissioning Group. 

The responsibilities of an Accountable Officer, including responsibilities for the 

propriety and regularity of the public finances for which the Accountable Officer is 

answerable, for keeping proper accounting records (which disclose with reasonable 

accuracy at any time the financial position of the Clinical Commissioning Group and 

enable them to ensure that the accounts comply with the requirements of the 

Accounts Direction) and for safeguarding the Clinical Commissioning Group’s assets 

(and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and 

other irregularities), are set out in the Clinical Commissioning Group Accountable 

Officer Appointment Letter. 

Under the National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended), NHS England has 

directed each Clinical Commissioning Group to prepare for each financial year 

financial statements in the form and on the basis set out in the Accounts Direction. 

The financial statements are prepared on an accruals basis and must give a true and 

fair view of the state of affairs of the Clinical Commissioning Group and of its net 

expenditure, changes in taxpayers’ equity and cash flows for the financial year. 

In preparing the financial statements, the Accountable Officer is required to comply 

with the requirements of the Manual for Accounts issued by the Department of 

Health and in particular to: 

Observe the Accounts Direction issued by NHS England, including the relevant 

accounting and disclosure requirements, and apply suitable accounting policies on a 

consistent basis; 

Make judgements and estimates on a reasonable basis; 



State whether applicable accounting standards as set out in the Manual for Accounts 

issued by the Department of Health have been followed, and disclose and explain 

any material departures in the financial statements; and, 

Prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis. 

To the best of my knowledge and belief, I have properly discharged the 

responsibilities set out in my Clinical Commissioning Group Accountable Officer 

Appointment Letter. 

 

David Slack 

Accountable Officer 

28 May 2015 
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NHS Somerset CCG - Annual Accounts 2014-15

Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure for the year ended

31 March 2015

2014-15 2013-14

Note £000 £000

Total Income and Expenditure

Employee benefits 4 5,312 5,008

Operating Expenses 5 667,961 648,649

Other operating revenue 2 (4,727) (3,945)

Net operating expenditure before interest 668,546 649,712

Investment Revenue 8 0 0

Other (gains)/losses 9 0 0

Finance costs 10 0 0

Net operating expenditure for the financial year 668,546 649,712

Net (gain)/loss on transfers by absorption 11 0 0

Total Net Expenditure for the year 668,546 649,712

Of which:

Administration Income and Expenditure

Employee benefits 4 5,169 5,008

Operating Expenses 5 8,346 8,305

Other operating revenue 2 (346) (93)

Net administration costs before interest 13,169 13,220

Programme Income and Expenditure

Employee benefits 4 143 0

Operating Expenses 5 659,615 640,344

Other operating revenue 2 (4,381) (3,852)

Net programme expenditure before interest 655,377 636,492

Other Comprehensive Net Expenditure 2014-15 2013-14

£000 £000

Impairments and reversals 0 0

Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of property, plant & equipment 0 0

Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of intangibles 0 0

Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of financial assets 0 0

Movements in other reserves 0 0

Net gain/(loss) on available for sale financial assets 0 0

Net gain/(loss) on assets held for sale 0 0

Net actuarial gain/(loss) on pension schemes 0 0

Share of (profit)/loss of associates and joint ventures 0 0

Reclassification Adjustments 0 0

On disposal of available for sale financial assets 0 0

Total comprehensive net expenditure for the year 668,546 649,712

The notes on pages 5 to 37 form part of this statement
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NHS Somerset CCG - Annual Accounts 2014-15

Statement of Financial Position as at

31 March 2015

31 March 2015 31 March 2014

Note £000 £000

Non-current assets:

Property, plant and equipment 13 181 0

Intangible assets 14 14 0

Investment property 15 0 0

Trade and other receivables 17 0 0

Other financial assets 18 0 0

Total non-current assets 195 0

Current assets:

Inventories 16 2 3

Trade and other receivables 17 5,324 3,087

Other financial assets 18 0 0

Other current assets 19 0 0

Cash and cash equivalents 20 50 47

Total current assets 5,376 3,137

Non-current assets held for sale 21 0 0

Total current assets 5,376 3,137

Total assets 5,571 3,137

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 23 (29,875) (28,691)

Other financial liabilities 24 0 0

Other liabilities 25 0 0

Borrowings 26 0 0

Provisions 30 (522) (451)

Total current liabilities (30,397) (29,142)

Non-Current Assets plus/less Net Current Assets/Liabilities (24,826) (26,005)

Non-current liabilities

Trade and other payables 23 0 0

Other financial liabilities 24 0 0

Other liabilities 25 0 0

Borrowings 26 0 0

Provisions 30 0 0

Total non-current liabilities 0 0

Assets less Liabilities (24,826) (26,005)

Financed by Taxpayers’ Equity

General fund (24,826) (26,005)

Revaluation reserve 0 0

Other reserves 0 0

Charitable Reserves 0 0

Total taxpayers' equity: (24,826) (26,005)

The notes on pages 5 to 37 form part of this statement

The financial statements on pages 1 to 4 were approved by the Governing Body on 28 May 2015 and signed on its behalf by:

David Slack

Chief Accountable Officer

NHS Somerset Clinical Commissioning Group
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NHS Somerset CCG - Annual Accounts 2014-15

Statement of Changes In Taxpayers Equity for the year ended

31 March 2015

General 

fund

Revaluation 

reserve

Other 

reserves

Total 

reserves

£000 £000 £000 £000

Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2014-15

Balance at 1 April 2014 (26,005) 0 0 (26,005)

Transfer between reserves in respect of assets transferred from closed NHS 

bodies 0 0 0 0

Adjusted NHS Clinical Commissioning Group balance at 1 April 2014 (26,005) 0 0 (26,005)

Changes in NHS Clinical Commissioning Group taxpayers’ equity for 2014-15

Net operating expenditure for the financial year (668,546) (668,546)

Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 0 0

Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of intangible assets 0 0

Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of financial assets 0 0

Total revaluations against revaluation reserve 0 0 0 0

Net gain (loss) on available for sale financial assets 0 0 0 0

Net gain (loss) on revaluation of assets held for sale 0 0 0 0

Impairments and reversals 0 0 0 0

Net actuarial gain (loss) on pensions 0 0 0 0

Movements in other reserves 0 0 0 0

Transfers between reserves 0 0 0 0

Release of reserves to the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure 0 0 0 0

Reclassification adjustment on disposal of available for sale financial assets 0 0 0 0

Transfers by absorption to (from) other bodies 0 0 0 0

Reserves eliminated on dissolution 0 0 0 0

Net Recognised NHS Clinical Commissioning Group Expenditure for the Financial Year (668,546) 0 0 (668,546)

Net funding 669,725 0 0 669,725

Balance at 31 March 2015 (24,826) 0 0 (24,826)

General 

fund

Revaluation 

reserve

Other 

reserves

Total 

reserves

£000 £000 £000 £000

Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2013-14

Balance at 1 April 2013 0 0 0 0

Transfer of assets and liabilities from closed NHS bodies as a result of the 1 

April 2013 transition 112 0 0 112

Adjusted NHS Clinical Commissioning Group balance at 1 April 2013 112 0 0 112

Changes in NHS Clinical Commissioning Group taxpayers’ equity for 2013-14

Net operating costs for the financial year (649,713) (649,713)

Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 0 0

Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of intangible assets 0 0

Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of financial assets 0 0

Total revaluations against revaluation reserve 0 0 0 0

Net gain (loss) on available for sale financial assets 0 0 0 0

Net gain (loss) on revaluation of assets held for sale 0 0 0 0

Impairments and reversals 0 0 0 0

Net actuarial gain (loss) on pensions 0 0 0 0

Movements in other reserves 0 0 0 0

Transfers between reserves 0 0 0 0

Release of reserves to the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure 0 0 0 0

Reclassification adjustment on disposal of available for sale financial assets 0 0 0 0

Transfers by absorption to (from) other bodies 0 0 0 0

Reserves eliminated on dissolution 0 0 0 0

Net Recognised NHS Clinical Commissioning Group for the Financial  Year (649,601) 0 0 (649,601)

Net funding 623,596 0 0 623,596

Balance at 31 March 2014 (26,005) 0 0 (26,005)

The notes on pages 5 to 37 form part of this statement
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NHS Somerset CCG - Annual Accounts 2014-15

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended

31 March 2015

2014-15 2013-14

Note £000 £000

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net operating expenditure for the financial year (668,546) (649,713)

Depreciation and amortisation 5 5 32

Impairments and reversals 5 0 75

Movement due to transfer by Modified Absorption 0 0

Other gains (losses) on foreign exchange 0 0

Donated assets received credited to revenue but non-cash 0 0

Government granted assets received credited to revenue but non-cash 0 0

Interest paid 0 0

Release of PFI deferred credit 0 0

Other Gains & Losses 0 0

Finance Costs 0 0

Unwinding of Discounts 0 0

(Increase)/decrease in inventories 1 2

(Increase)/decrease in trade & other receivables 17 (2,237) (3,087)

(Increase)/decrease in other current assets 0 0

Increase/(decrease) in trade & other payables 23 1,184 28,691

Increase/(decrease) in other current liabilities 0 0

Provisions utilised 30 (270) 0

Increase/(decrease) in provisions 30 341 451

Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) from Operating Activities (669,522) (623,549)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Interest received 0 0

(Payments) for property, plant and equipment (185) 0

(Payments) for intangible assets (15) 0

(Payments) for investments with the Department of Health 0 0

(Payments) for other financial assets 0 0

(Payments) for financial assets (LIFT) 0 0

Proceeds from disposal of assets held for sale: property, plant and equipment 0 0

Proceeds from disposal of assets held for sale: intangible assets 0 0

Proceeds from disposal of investments with the Department of Health 0 0

Proceeds from disposal of other financial assets 0 0

Proceeds from disposal of financial assets (LIFT) 0 0

Loans made in respect of LIFT 0 0

Loans repaid in respect of LIFT 0 0

Rental revenue 0 0

Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) from Investing Activities (200) 0

Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) before Financing (669,722) (623,549)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Parliamentary Funding Received 669,725 623,596

Other loans received 0 0

Other loans repaid 0 0

Capital element of payments in respect of finance leases and on Statement of Financial Position PFI and LIFT 0 0

Capital grants and other capital receipts 0 0

Capital receipts surrendered 0 0

Net Cash Inflow (Outflow) from Financing Activities 669,725 623,596

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents 20 3 47

Cash & Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Financial Year 47 0

Effect of exchange rate changes on the balance of cash and cash equivalents held in foreign currencies 0 0

Cash & Cash Equivalents (including bank overdrafts) at the End of the Financial Year 50 47

The notes on pages 5 to 37 form part of this statement
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NHS Somerset CCG - Annual Accounts 2014-15

Notes to the financial statements

1 Accounting Policies

NHS England has directed that the financial statements of clinical commissioning groups shall meet the accounting requirements of the Manual 

for Accounts  issued by the Department of Health. Consequently, the following financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the 

Manual for Accounts 2014-15  issued by the Department of Health. The accounting policies contained in the Manual for Accounts  follow 

International Financial Reporting Standards to the extent that they are meaningful and appropriate to clinical commissioning groups, as 

determined by HM Treasury, which is advised by the Financial Reporting Advisory Board.  Where the Manual for Accounts  permits a choice of 

accounting policy, the accounting policy which is judged to be most appropriate to the particular circumstances of the clinical commissioning 

group for the purpose of giving a true and fair view has been selected. The particular policies adopted by the clinical commissioning group are 

described below. They have been applied consistently in dealing with items considered material in relation to the accounts.

1.1 Going Concern

These accounts have been prepared on the going concern basis.

Public sector bodies are assumed to be going concerns where the continuation of the provision of a service in the future is anticipated, as 

evidenced by inclusion of financial provision for that service in published documents.

Where a clinical commissioning group ceases to exist, it considers whether or not its services will continue to be provided (using the same 

assets, by another public sector entity) in determining whether to use the concept of going concern for the final set of Financial Statements.  If 

services will continue to be provided the financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis.

1.2  Accounting Convention

These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified to account for the revaluation of property, plant and equipment, 

intangible assets, inventories and certain financial assets and financial liabilities.

1.3 Acquisitions & Discontinued Operations

Activities are considered to be ‘acquired’ only if they are taken on from outside the public sector. Activities are considered to be ‘discontinued’ 

only if they cease entirely. They are not considered to be ‘discontinued’ if they transfer from one public sector body to another.

1.4 Movement of Assets within the Department of Health Group

Transfers as part of reorganisation fall to be accounted for by use of absorption accounting in line with the Government Financial Reporting 

Manual, issued by HM Treasury. The Government Financial Reporting Manual does not require retrospective adoption, so prior year transactions 

(which have been accounted for under merger accounting) have not been restated. Absorption accounting requires that entities account for their 

transactions in the period in which they took place, with no restatement of performance required when functions transfer within the public sector.  

Where assets and liabilities transfer, the gain or loss resulting is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure, and is 

disclosed separately from operating costs.

Other transfers of assets and liabilities within the Department of Health Group are accounted for in line with IAS 20 and similarly give rise to 

income and expenditure entries.

1.5 Charitable Funds

Somerset Clinical Commissioning Group does not have any charitable funds.

1.6 Pooled Budgets

Where the clinical commissioning group has entered into a pooled budget arrangement under Section 75 of the National Health Service Act 2006 

the clinical commissioning group accounts for its share of the assets, liabilities, income and expenditure arising from the activities of the pooled 

budget, identified in accordance with the pooled budget agreement.

If the clinical commissioning group is in a “jointly controlled operation”, the clinical commissioning group recognises:

�                The assets the clinical commissioning group controls;

�                The liabilities the clinical commissioning group incurs;

�                The expenses the clinical commissioning group incurs; and,

�                The clinical commissioning group’s share of the income from the pooled budget activities.

If the clinical commissioning group is involved in a “jointly controlled assets” arrangement, in addition to the above, the clinical commissioning 

group recognises:

�                The clinical commissioning group’s share of the jointly controlled assets (classified according to the nature of the assets);

�                The clinical commissioning group’s share of any liabilities incurred jointly; and,

�                The clinical commissioning group’s share of the expenses jointly incurred.

The Clinical Commissioning Group has entered into a pooled budget with Somerset County Council.  Under the arrangements, funds are pooled 

under Section 75 of the NHS Act 2006 for integrated community equipment, learning disability and carers services, and as a memorandum note 

to the accounts provides details of the joint income and expenditure.

The pool is hosted by Somerset County Council.  As a commissioner of healthcare services, the clinical commissioning group makes 

contributions to the pool, which are then used to purchase healthcare services.  The clinical commissioning group accounts for its share of the 

assets, liabilities, income and expenditure of the pool as determined by the pooled budget agreement.

1.7 Critical Accounting Judgements & Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the clinical commissioning group’s accounting policies, management is required to make judgements, estimates and 

assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated 

assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from those 

estimates and the estimates and underlying assumptions are continually reviewed. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the 

period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision 

affects both current and future periods.

1.7.1  Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (see below) that management has made in the process of 

applying the clinical commissioning group’s accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial 

statements:

• Valuation assumptions for property, plant and equipment – note 13

• Provisions recognised as at 31 March 2015 – note 30

• Income and Expenditure Accruals – notes 17 and 23

1.8  Revenue

Revenue in respect of services provided is recognised when, and to the extent that, performance occurs, and is measured at the fair value of the 

consideration receivable.

Where income is received for a specific activity that is to be delivered in the following year, that income is deferred.
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NHS Somerset CCG - Annual Accounts 2014-15

Notes to the financial statements

1.9 Employee Benefits

1.9.1 Short-term Employee Benefits

Salaries, wages and employment-related payments are recognised in the period in which the service is received from employees, including 

bonuses earned but not yet taken.

The cost of leave earned but not taken by employees at the end of the period is recognised in the financial statements to the extent that 

employees are permitted to carry forward leave into the following period.

1.9.2 Retirement Benefit Costs

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pensions Scheme. The scheme is an unfunded, defined benefit scheme 

that covers NHS employers, General Practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction of the Secretary of State, in England and Wales. 

The scheme is not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies to identify their share of the underlying scheme assets and 

liabilities. Therefore, the scheme is accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme: the cost to the clinical commissioning group of 

participating in the scheme is taken as equal to the contributions payable to the scheme for the accounting period.

For early retirements other than those due to ill health the additional pension liabilities are not funded by the scheme. The full amount of the 

liability for the additional costs is charged to expenditure at the time the clinical commissioning group commits itself to the retirement, regardless 

of the method of payment.

None of Somerset Clinical Commissioning Group’s employees are members of the Local Government Superannuation Scheme, which is a 

defined benefits pension scheme.

1.10 Other Expenses

Other operating expenses are recognised when, and to the extent that, the goods or services have been received. They are measured at the fair 

value of the consideration payable.

Expenses and liabilities in respect of grants are recognised when the clinical commissioning group has a present legal or constructive obligation, 

which occurs when all of the conditions attached to the payment have been met.

1.11 Property, Plant & Equipment

1.11.1 Recognition

Property, plant and equipment is capitalised if:

�                It is held for use in delivering services or for administrative purposes;

�                It is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential will be supplied to the clinical commissioning group;

�                It is expected to be used for more than one financial year;

�                The cost of the item can be measured reliably; and,

�                The item has a cost of at least £5,000; or,

�                Collectively, a number of items have a cost of at least £5,000 and individually have a cost of more than £250, where the assets are 

functionally interdependent, they had broadly simultaneous purchase dates, are anticipated to have simultaneous disposal dates and are under 

single managerial control; or,
�                Items form part of the initial equipping and setting-up cost of a new building, ward or unit, irrespective of their individual or collective 

cost.

1.11.2 Valuation

All property, plant and equipment are measured initially at cost, representing the cost directly attributable to acquiring or constructing the asset 

and bringing it to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. All assets are 

measured subsequently at fair value.

Fixtures and equipment are carried at depreciated historic cost as this is not considered to be materially different from fair value.

1.12 Intangible Assets

1.12.1 Recognition

Intangible assets are non-monetary assets without physical substance, which are capable of sale separately from the rest of the clinical 

commissioning group’s business or which arise from contractual or other legal rights. They are recognised only:

�                When it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to, or service potential be provided to, the clinical commissioning group;

�                Where the cost of the asset can be measured reliably; and,

�                Where the cost is at least £5,000.

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognised at fair value. Software that is integral to the operating of hardware, for example an 

operating system, is capitalised as part of the relevant item of property, plant and equipment. Software that is not integral to the operation of 

hardware, for example application software, is capitalised as an intangible asset. Expenditure on research is not capitalised but is recognised as 

an operating expense in the period in which it is incurred. Internally-generated assets are recognised if, and only if, all of the following have been 

demonstrated:

�                The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use;

�                The intention to complete the intangible asset and use it;

�                The ability to sell or use the intangible asset;

�                How the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits or service potential;

�                The availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the intangible asset and sell or use it; and,

�                The ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development.

1.12.2 Measurement

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible assets is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when the criteria 

above are initially met. Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised, the expenditure is recognised in the period in which it is 

incurred.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at fair value by reference to an active market, or, where no active market exists, at 

amortised replacement cost (modern equivalent assets basis), indexed for relevant price increases, as a proxy for fair value. Internally-developed 

software is held at historic cost to reflect the opposing effects of increases in development costs and technological advances.

6



NHS Somerset CCG - Annual Accounts 2014-15

Notes to the financial statements

1.13 Depreciation, Amortisation & Impairments

Freehold land, properties under construction, and assets held for sale are not depreciated.

Otherwise, depreciation and amortisation are charged to write off the costs or valuation of property, plant and equipment and intangible non-

current assets, less any residual value, over their estimated useful lives, in a manner that reflects the consumption of economic benefits or 

service potential of the assets. The estimated useful life of an asset is the period over which the clinical commissioning group expects to obtain 

economic benefits or service potential from the asset. This is specific to the clinical commissioning group and may be shorter than the physical 

life of the asset itself. Estimated useful lives and residual values are reviewed each year end, with the effect of any changes recognised on a 

prospective basis. Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

At each reporting period end, the clinical commissioning group checks whether there is any indication that any of its tangible or intangible non-

current assets have suffered an impairment loss. If there is indication of an impairment loss, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated to 

determine whether there has been a loss and, if so, its amount. Intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment annually.

A revaluation decrease that does not result from a loss of economic value or service potential is recognised as an impairment charged to the 

revaluation reserve to the extent that there is a balance on the reserve for the asset and, thereafter, to expenditure. Impairment losses that arise 

from a clear consumption of economic benefit are taken to expenditure. Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of 

the asset is increased to the revised estimate of the recoverable amount but capped at the amount that would have been determined had there 

been no initial impairment loss. The reversal of the impairment loss is credited to expenditure to the extent of the decrease previously charged 

there and thereafter to the revaluation reserve.

1.14 Donated Assets

Somerset Clinical Commissioning Group does not have any donated assets.

1.15  Government Grants

Somerset Clinical Commissioning Group does not have any government grants.

1.16 Non-current Assets Held For Sale

Somerset Clinical Commissioning Group does not hold any non-current assets held for sale.

1.17 Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the lessee. All other leases 

are classified as operating leases.

1.17.1 The Clinical Commissioning Group as Lessee

Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases are initially recognised, at the inception of the lease, at fair value or, if lower, at the 

present value of the minimum lease payments, with a matching liability for the lease obligation to the lessor. Lease payments are apportioned 

between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate on interest on the remaining balance of the 

liability. Finance charges are recognised in calculating the clinical commissioning group’s surplus/deficit.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease incentives are recognised initially as 

a liability and subsequently as a reduction of rentals on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Contingent rentals are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land and building components are separated and individually assessed as to whether they are 

operating or finance leases.

1.17.2 The Clinical Commissioning Group as Lessor

The Clinical Commissioning Group does not have any lessor arrangements 

1.18  Private Finance Initiative Transactions

Somerset Clinical Commissioning Group does not hold any PFI schemes.

1.19  Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value using the first-in first-out cost formula. This is considered to be a reasonable 

approximation to fair value due to the high turnover of stocks.

1.20 Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any financial institution repayable without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents 

are investments that mature in 3 months or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with 

insignificant risk of change in value.

In the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and that form an 

integral part of the clinical commissioning group’s cash management.

1.21  Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the clinical commissioning group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is 

probable that the clinical commissioning group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the 

obligation. The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the end of the 

reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the 

obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows using HM Treasury’s discount rate as follows:

�                Timing of cash flows (0 to 5 years inclusive): Minus 1.50%

�                Timing of cash flows (6 to 10 years inclusive): Minus 1.05%

�                Timing of cash flows (over 10 years): Plus 2.20%

�                All employee early departures: 1.30%

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, the receivable is 

recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursements will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

A restructuring provision is recognised when the clinical commissioning group has developed a detailed formal plan for the restructuring and has 

raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement the plan or announcing its main features 

to those affected by it. The measurement of a restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring, which 

are those amounts that are both necessarily entailed by the restructuring and not associated with on-going activities of the entity.

Somerset Clinical Commissioning Group does not have any plans for restructuring.

1.22  Clinical Negligence Costs

The NHS Litigation Authority operates a risk pooling scheme under which the clinical commissioning group pays an annual contribution to the 

NHS Litigation Authority which in return settles all clinical negligence claims. The contribution is charged to expenditure. Although the NHS 

Litigation Authority is administratively responsible for all clinical negligence cases the legal liability remains with the clinical commissioning group.
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Notes to the financial statements

1.23  Non-clinical Risk Pooling

The clinical commissioning group participates in the Property Expenses Scheme and the Liabilities to Third Parties Scheme. Both are risk pooling 

schemes under which the clinical commissioning group pays an annual contribution to the NHS Litigation Authority and, in return, receives 

assistance with the costs of claims arising. The annual membership contributions, and any excesses payable in respect of particular claims are 

charged to operating expenses as and when they become due.

1.24 Continuing healthcare risk pooling
In 2014-15 a risk pool scheme has been introduced by NHS England for continuing healthcare claims, for claim periods prior to 31 March 2013.  

Under the scheme clinical commissioning group contribute annually to a pooled fund, which is used to settle the claims.

1.25 Carbon Reduction Commitment Scheme

Somerset Clinical Commissioning Group has not received any allowance in respect of carbon reduction or other similar schemes.

1.26 Contingencies

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-

occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the clinical commissioning group, or a present obligation that is 

not recognised because it is not probable that a payment will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be 

measured sufficiently reliably. A contingent liability is disclosed unless the possibility of a payment is remote.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of 

one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the clinical commissioning group. A contingent asset is disclosed where an 

inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Where the time value of money is material, contingencies are disclosed at their present value.

1.27 Financial Assets

Financial assets are recognised when the clinical commissioning group becomes party to the financial instrument contract or, in the case of trade 

receivables, when the goods or services have been delivered. Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights have expired or the 

asset has been transferred.

Financial assets are classified into the following categories:

�                Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss;

�                Held to maturity investments;

�                Available for sale financial assets; and,

�                Loans and receivables.

The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.

1.27.1 Loans & Receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments which are not quoted in an active market. After 

initial recognition, they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment.  Interest is recognised using the 

effective interest method.

Fair value is determined by reference to quoted market prices where possible, otherwise by valuation techniques.

In the year ended 31 March 2015 there were no assets carried at fair value.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset, to the 

initial fair value of the financial asset.

1.28 Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised on the statement of financial position when the clinical commissioning group becomes party to the contractual 

provisions of the financial instrument or, in the case of trade payables, when the goods or services have been received. Financial liabilities are de-

recognised when the liability has been discharged, that is, the liability has been paid or has expired.

Loans from the Department of Health are recognised at historical cost. Otherwise, financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value.

In the year ended 31 March 2015, there were no financial liabilities held at fair value.

1.29 Value Added Tax

Most of the activities of the clinical commissioning group are outside the scope of VAT and, in general, output tax does not apply and input tax on 

purchases is not recoverable. Irrecoverable VAT is charged to the relevant expenditure category or included in the capitalised purchase cost of 

fixed assets. Where output tax is charged or input VAT is recoverable, the amounts are stated net of VAT.

1.30 Foreign Currencies

The clinical commissioning group’s functional currency and presentational currency is sterling. The clinical commissioning group does not have 

any exposure to foreign currencies. 

1.31 Third Party Assets

The Clinical Commissioning Group does not have any third party assets.

1.32 Losses & Special Payments

Losses and special payments are items that Parliament would not have contemplated when it agreed funds for the health service or passed 

legislation. By their nature they are items that ideally should not arise. They are therefore subject to special control procedures compared with the 

generality of payments. They are divided into different categories, which govern the way that individual cases are handled.

Losses and special payments are charged to the relevant functional headings in expenditure on an accruals basis, including losses which would 

have been made good through insurance cover had the clinical commissioning group not been bearing its own risks (with insurance premiums 

then being included as normal revenue expenditure).

1.33 Subsidiaries

The Clinical Commissioning Group does not have any subsidiaries.

1.34   Associates
The Clinical Commissioning Group does not have any associates 

1.35  Joint Ventures

The Clinical Commissioning Group does not have any joint ventures.

1.36 Joint Operations

The Clinical Commissioning Group does not have any joint operations.

1.37 Research & Development

The Clinical Commissioning Group does not have any research and development expenditure. 

1.38 Accounting Standards That Have Been Issued But Have Not Yet Been Adopted

The Government Financial Reporting Manual does not require the following Standards and Interpretations to be applied in 2014-15, all of which 

are subject to consultation:

�                IFRS 9: Financial Instruments

�                IFRS 13: Fair Value Measurement

�                IFRS 14: Regulatory Deferral Accounts

�                IFRS 15: Revenue for Contract with Customers
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Notes to the financial statements

The application of the Standards as revised would not have a material impact on the accounts for 2014-15, were they applied in that year.
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2 Other Operating Revenue

2014-15 2014-15 2014-15 2013-14

Total Admin Programme Total

£000 £000 £000 £000

Recoveries in respect of employee benefits 0 0 0 0

Patient transport services 0 0 0 0

Prescription fees and charges 0 0 0 0

Dental fees and charges 0 0 0 0

Education, training and research 38 38 0 0

Charitable and other contributions  to revenue expenditure: NHS 0 0 0 0

Charitable and other contributions  to revenue expenditure: non-NHS 0 0 0 0

Receipt of donations for capital acquisitions: NHS Charity 0 0 0 0

Receipt of Government grants for capital acquisitions 0 0 0 0

Non-patient care services to other bodies 3,017 46 2,971 3,648

Income generation 0 0 0 0

Rental revenue from finance leases 0 0 0 0

Rental revenue from operating leases 0 0 0 0

Other revenue 1,672 262 1,410 297

Total other operating revenue 4,727 346 4,381 3,945

Administration revenue is revenue received that is not directly attributable to the provision of healthcare or healthcare services.

3 Revenue

2014-15 2014-15 2014-15 2013-14

Total Admin Programme Total

£000 £000 £000 £000

From rendering of services 4,727 346 4,381 3,945

From sale of goods 0 0 0 0

Total 4,727 346 4,381 3,945

Revenue is totally from the supply of services. The clinical commissioning group receives no revenue from the sale of goods.

Revenue in this note does not include cash received from NHS England, which is drawn down directly into the bank account of the clinical 

commissioning group and credited to the General Fund.
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4. Employee benefits and staff numbers

4.1.1 Employee benefits 2014-15

Total

Permanent 

Employees Other Total

Permanent 

Employees Other Total

Permanent 

Employees Other

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Employee Benefits

Salaries and wages 4,319 4,227 92 4,191 4,133 58 128 94 34

Social security costs 372 371 1 367 366 1 5 5 0

Employer Contributions to NHS Pension scheme 503 501 2 493 491 2 10 10 0

Other pension costs 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Other post-employment benefits 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Other employment benefits 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Termination benefits 118 118 0 118 118 0 0 0 0

Gross employee benefits expenditure 5,312 5,217 95 5,169 5,108 61 143 109 34

Less recoveries in respect of employee benefits (note 4.1.2) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total - Net admin employee benefits including capitalised costs 5,312 5,217 95 5,169 5,108 61 143 109 34

Less: Employee costs capitalised 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Net employee benefits excluding capitalised costs 5,312 5,217 95 5,169 5,108 61 143 109 34

2013/14 5,008 4,879 129 5,008 4,879 129 0 0 0

4.1.2 Recoveries in respect of employee benefits 2014-15

Total

Permanent 

Employees Other

£000 £000 £000

Employee Benefits - Revenue

Salaries and wages 0 0 0

Social security costs 0 0 0

Employer contributions to the NHS Pension Scheme 0 0 0

Other pension costs 0 0 0

Other post-employment benefits 0 0 0

Other employment benefits 0 0 0

Termination benefits 0 0 0

Total recoveries in respect of employee benefits 0 0 0

2013/14 0 0 0

Admin ProgrammeTotal
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4.2 Average number of people employed

2013-14

Total

Permanently 

employed Other Total

Number Number Number Number

Total 90 87 3 90

Of the above:

Number of whole time equivalent people engaged 

on capital projects 0 0 0 0

4.3  Staff sickness absence and ill health retirements

2014-15 2013-14

Number Number

Total Days Lost 531 285

Total Staff Years 85 83

Average working Days Lost 6.2 3.4

2013/14 figures equated to 9 months

2014-15 2013-14

Number Number

Number of persons retired early on ill health grounds 0 0

£000 £000

Total additional Pensions liabilities accrued in the year 0 0

Ill health retirement costs are met by the NHS Pension Scheme

The clinical commissioning group has not agreed any early retirements in the year to 31 March 2015.

4.4 Exit packages agreed in the financial year

Number £ Number £ Number £

Less than £10,000 1 2,220 0 0 1 2,220

£10,001 to £25,000 0 0 0 0 0 0

£25,001 to £50,000 0 0 0 0 0 0

£50,001 to £100,000 0 0 0 0 0 0

£100,001 to £150,000 1 116,025 0 0 1 116,025

£150,001 to £200,000 0 0 0 0 0 0

Over £200,001 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total 2 118,245 0 0 2 118,245

Note - The Clinical Commissioning Group had no Exit Packages in 2013/14

Number £

Less than £10,000 0 0

£10,001 to £25,000 0 0

£25,001 to £50,000 0 0

£50,001 to £100,000 0 0

£100,001 to £150,000 0 0

£150,001 to £200,000 0 0

Over £200,001 0 0
Total 0 0

Analysis of Other Agreed Departures

Number £

Voluntary redundancies including early retirement contractual costs 0 0

Mutually agreed resignations (MARS) contractual costs 0 0

Early retirements in the efficiency of the service contractual costs 0 0

Contractual payments in lieu of notice 0 0

Exit payments following Employment Tribunals or court orders 0 0

Non-contractual payments requiring HMT approval* 0 0

Total 0 0

Exit costs are accounted for in accordance with relevant accounting standards and at the latest in full in the year of departure.

The Remuneration Report includes the disclosure of exit payments payable to individuals named in that Report.

2014-15

2014-15 2014-15 2014-15

Redundancy and other departure costs have been paid in accordance with the provisions in the NHS Agenda for Change redundancy scheme

Other agreed departures

These tables report the number and value of exit packages agreed in the financial year. The expense associated with these departures may have been 

recognised in part or in full in a previous period.

Compulsory redundancies Other agreed departures Total

Departures where special 

payments have been made
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4.5 Pension costs

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pension Scheme. Details of the benefits 

payable under these provisions can be found on the NHS Pensions website at www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/Pensions.

The NHS Pension Scheme is an unfunded, defined benefit scheme that covers NHS employees, GP Practices and 

other bodies, allowed under the direction of the Secretary of State, in England and Wales. The scheme is not 

designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies  to identify their share of the underlying schemes assets 

and liabilities. Therefore, the scheme is accounted for as if it were a defined contribution scheme: the cost to the NHS 

Body of participating in the scheme is taken equal to the contributions payable to the scheme for the accounting 

In order that the defined benefit obligations recognised in the financial statements do not differ materially from those 

that would be determined at the reporting date by a formal actuarial valuation, the FReM requires that “the period 

between formal valuations shall be four years, with approximate assessments in intervening years”. An outline of 

4.5.1 Accounting Valuation

A valuation of the scheme liability is carried out annually by the scheme actuary as at the end of the reporting period. 

This utilises an actuarial assessment for the previous accounting period in conjunction with updated membership and 

financial data for the current reporting period, and are accepted as providing suitably robust figures for financial 

reporting purposes. The valuation of the scheme liability as at 31 March 2015, is based on valuation data as 31 

March 2014, updated to 31 March 2015 with summary global member and accounting data. In undertaking this 

actuarial assessment, the methodology prescribed in IAS 19, relevant FReM interpretations, and the discount rate 

The latest assessment of the liabilities of the scheme is contained in the scheme actuary report, which forms part of 

the annual NHS Pension Scheme (England and Wales) Pension Accounts, published annually. These accounts can 

be viewed on the NHS Pensions website. Copies can also be obtained from The Stationery Office.

4.5.2 Full actuarial (funding) valuation

The purpose of this valuation is to assess the level of liability in respect of the benefits due under the scheme (taking 

into account its recent demographic experience), and to recommend the contribution rates.

The last published actuarial valuation undertaken for the NHS Pension Scheme was completed for the year ending 

The Scheme Regulations allow contribution rates to be set by the Secretary of State for Health, with the consent of 

HM Treasury, and consideration of the advice of the Scheme Actuary and appropriate employee and employer 

representatives as deemed appropriate.
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4.5 Pension costs

4.5.3 Scheme Provisions

The NHS Pension Scheme provides defined benefits, which are summarised below. This list is an illustrative guide 

only, and is not intended to detail all the benefits provided by the Scheme or the specific conditions that must be met 

before these benefits can be obtained:

• The Scheme is a “final salary” scheme. Annual pensions are normally based on 1/80th for the 1995 section and of 

the best of the last three years pensionable pay for each year of service, and 1/60th for the 2008 section of 

reckonable pay per year of membership. Members who are practitioners as defined by the Scheme Regulations have 

their annual pensions based upon total pensionable earnings over the relevant pensionable service;

• With effect from 1 April 2008 members can choose to give up some of their annual pension for an additional tax free 

lump sum, up to a maximum amount permitted under HM Revenue & Customs rules. This new provision is known as 

“pension commutation”;

• Annual increases are applied to pension payments at rates defined by the Pensions (Increase) Act 1971, and are 

based on changes in retail prices in the twelve months ending 30 September in the previous calendar year. From 

2011-12 the Consumer Price Index (CPI) has been used and replaced the Retail Prices Index (RPI).

• Early payment of a pension, with enhancement, is available to members of the Scheme who are permanently 

incapable of fulfilling their duties effectively through illness or infirmity. A death gratuity of twice final year’s 

pensionable pay for death in service, and five times their annual pension for death after retirement is payable;

• For early retirements other than those due to ill health the additional pension liabilities are not funded by the 

scheme. The full amount of the liability for the additional costs is charged to the employer.

• Members can purchase additional service in the Scheme and contribute to money purchase AVC’s run by the 

Scheme’s approved providers or by other Free Standing Additional Voluntary Contributions (FSAVC) providers.
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5. Operating expenses

2014-15 2014-15 2014-15 2013-14

Total Admin Programme Total Notes

£000 £000 £000 £000

Gross employee benefits

Employee benefits excluding governing body members 4,625 4,482 143 4,377

Executive governing body members 687 687 0 631

Total gross employee benefits 5,312 5,169 143 5,008

Other costs

Services from other CCGs and NHS England 6,018 5,131 887 5,452

Services from foundation trusts 439,275 69 439,206 420,193

Services from other NHS trusts 38,465 1 38,464 47,464

Services from other NHS bodies 2 0 2 0

Purchase of healthcare from non-NHS bodies 94,629 0 94,629 90,866 1

Chair and Non Executive Members 338 338 0 574

Supplies and services – clinical 1 0 1 1

Supplies and services – general 778 392 386 1,038

Consultancy services 214 214 0 28

Establishment 821 336 485 682

Transport 12 12 0 18

Premises 1,433 1,426 7 290

Impairments and reversals of receivables 0 0 0 0

Inventories written down 0 0 0 0

Depreciation 4 4 0 32

Amortisation 0 0 0 0

Impairments and reversals of property, plant and equipment 0 0 0 75

Impairments and reversals of intangible assets 0 0 0 0

Impairments and reversals of financial assets 0 0 0 0

�          Assets carried at amortised cost 0 0 0 0

�          Assets carried at cost 0 0 0 0

�          Available for sale financial assets 0 0 0 0

Impairments and reversals of non-current assets held for sale 0 0 0 0

Impairments and reversals of investment properties 0 0 0 0

Audit fees 114 114 0 116

Other non statutory audit expenditure

�          Internal audit services 0 0 0 0 2

�          Other services 0 0 0 0

General dental services and personal dental services 0 0 0 0

Prescribing costs 77,980 0 77,980 77,020

Pharmaceutical services 0 0 0 0

General ophthalmic services 0 0 0 0

GPMS/APMS and PCTMS 4,476 0 4,476 3,917

Other professional fees excl. audit 153 153 0 124

Grants to other public bodies 1,799 0 1,799 200

Clinical negligence 10 10 0 9

Research and development (excluding staff costs) 0 0 0 0

Education and training 149 146 3 100

Change in discount rate 0 0 0 0

Provisions 341 0 341 451

CHC Risk Pool contributions 949 0 949 0

Other expenditure 0 0 0 0 3

Total other costs 667,961 8,346 659,615 648,650

Total operating expenses 673,273 13,515 659,758 653,658

Notes

1. 2013-14 Purchase of healthcare from non-NHS bodies (£200,000) now within Grants to other public bodies.

2. 2013-14 Internal Audit Services (£22,800) now within Other professional fees excl. audit

3. 2013-14 Other expenditure (£450,526) now within Provisions
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6.1 Better Payment Practice Code

Measure of compliance 2014-15 2014-15 2013-14 2013-14

Number £000 Number £000

Non-NHS Payables

Total Non-NHS Trade invoices paid in the Year 14,488 98,137 12,723 84,679

Total Non-NHS Trade Invoices paid within target 14,438 97,800 12,566 83,980

Percentage of Non-NHS Trade invoices paid within target 99.65% 99.66% 98.77% 99.17%

NHS Payables

Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid in the Year 3,693 484,544 2,198 471,630

Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid within target 3,678 484,042 2,154 469,288

Percentage of NHS Trade Invoices paid within target 99.59% 99.90% 98.00% 99.50%

6.2 The Late Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest) Act 1998 2014-15 2013-14

£000 £000

Amounts included in finance costs from claims made under this legislation 0 0

Compensation paid to cover debt recovery costs under this legislation 0 0

Total 0 0

7 Income Generation Activities

8. Investment revenue

The clinical commissioning group had no Investment Revenue as at 31 March 2015.

9. Other gains and losses

The clinical commissioning group had no Other gains and losses as at 31 March 2015.

10. Finance costs

The clinical commissioning group had no Finance Costs as at 31 March 2015.

11. Net gain/(loss) on transfer by absorption

The clinical commissioning group did not undertake any income generation activities in 2014/15.

The clinical commissioning group had not transferred any function(s) that gave rise to any recognised gain or loss as

at 31 March 2015.
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12. Operating Leases

12.1 As lessee

12.1.1 Payments recognised as an Expense 2014-15 2013-14

Land Buildings Other Total Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Payments recognised as an expense

Minimum lease payments 0 1,357 10 1,367 522

Contingent rents 0 0 0 0 0

Sub-lease payments 0 0 0 0 0

Total 0 1,357 10 1,367 522

12.1.2 Future minimum lease payments 2014-15 2013-14

Land Buildings Other Total Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Payable:

No later than one year 0 0 18 18 12

Between one and five years 0 0 24 24 3

After five years 0 0 0 0 0

Total 0 0 42 42 15

12.2 As lessor

The clinical commissioning group had no leases let as at 31 March 2015.

The clinical commissioning group occupies property owned and managed by NHS Property Service Ltd. For 2014/15, the clinical 

commissioning group picked up charges for properties that it occupied, as well as picking up under recovered costs for properties which the 

clinical commissioning group was identified as the lead commissioner (£635k). This is reflected in Note 12.1.1.

While our arrangements with NHS Property Services Ltd fall within the definition of operating leases, the rental charge for future years has not 

yet been agreed. Consequently, this note does not include future minimum lease payments for these arrangements.

The clinical commissioning group also has annual commitments under lease agreements for fleet vehicles. There are no contingent rentals or 

purchase options built within any of the current lease arrangements.
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13 Property, plant and equipment

2014-15 Land 

Plant & 

machinery

Transport 

equipment

Information 

technology

Furniture & 

fittings Total 2013/14

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost or valuation at 1 April 2014 0 0 0 107 0 107

Transfer of assets from closed NHS bodies as a result of the 1 April 2013 

transition 107

Addition of assets under construction and payments on account 0 0

Additions purchased 0 0 0 155 30 185 0

Additions donated 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Additions government granted 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Additions leased 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reclassifications 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reclassified as held for sale and reversals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Disposals other than by sale 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Upward revaluation gains 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Impairments charged 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reversal of impairments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Transfer (to)/from other public sector body 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Cumulative depreciation adjustment following revaluation 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Cost/Valuation At 31 March 2015 0 0 0 262 30 292 107

Depreciation 1 April 2014 0 0 0 107 0 107 0

Reclassifications 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reclassified as held for sale and reversals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Disposals other than by sale 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Upward revaluation gains 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Impairments charged 0 0 0 0 0 0 75

Reversal of impairments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Charged during the year 0 0 0 4 0 4 32

Transfer (to)/from other public sector body 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Cumulative depreciation adjustment following revaluation 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Depreciation at 31 March 2015 0 0 0 111 0 111 107

Net Book Value at 31 March 2015 0 0 0 151 30 181 0

Purchased 0 0 0 151 30 181 0

Donated 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Government Granted 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total at 31 March 2015 0 0 0 151 30 181 0

Asset financing:

Owned 0 0 0 151 30 181 0

Held on finance lease 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

On-SOFP Lift contracts 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

PFI residual: interests 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total at 31 March 2015 0 0 0 151 30 181 0

Revaluation Reserve Balance for Property, Plant & Equipment

The clinical commissioning group had no Revaluation Reserve Balance as at 31 March 2015
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13 Property, plant and equipment cont'd

13.1 Additions to assets under construction

The clinical commissioning group had no additions to assets under construction at 31 March 2015.

13.2 Donated assets

The clinical commissioning group did not hold any donated assets at 31 March 2015

13.3 Government granted assets

The clinical commissioning group did not hold any government granted assets at 31 March 2015.

13.4 Property revaluation

The clinical commissioning group had no property revaluation at 31 March 2015

13.5 Compensation from third parties

13.6 Write downs to recoverable amount

The clinical commissioning group had no assets written down to recoverable amounts at 31 March 2015

13.7 Temporarily idle assets

The clinical commissioning group had no temporarily idle assets as at 31 March 2015

13.8 Cost or valuation of fully depreciated assets

The clinical commissioning group had no fully depreciated assets with any value still in use as at 31 March 2015

13.9 Economic lives

Buildings excluding dwellings - -

Dwellings - -

Plant & machinery - -

Transport equipment - -

Information technology 5 5

Furniture & fittings 10 10

The clinical commissioning group had no compensation from third parties for assets impaired, lost or given up at 31 March

2015.

Minimum 

Life (years)

Maximum 

Life (Years)
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14 Intangible non-current assets

2014-15

Computer 

Software: 

Purchased

Computer 

Software: 

Internally 

Generated

Licences & 

Trademarks Patents 

Development 

Expenditure 

(internally 

generated) Total 2013/14

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost or valuation at 1 April 2014 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Additions purchased 15 0 0 0 0 15 0

Additions internally generated 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Additions donated 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Additions government granted 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Additions leased 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reclassifications 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reclassified as held for sale and reversals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Disposals other than by sale 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Upward revaluation gains 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Impairments charged 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reversal of impairments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Transfer (to)/from other public sector body 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Cumulative amortisation adjustment following revaluation 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Cost / Valuation At 31 March 2015 15 0 0 0 0 15 0

Amortisation 1 April 2014 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reclassifications 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reclassified as held for sale and reversals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Disposals other than by sale 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Upward revaluation gains 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Impairments charged 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reversal of impairments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Charged during the year 1 0 0 0 0 1 0

Transfer (to) from other public sector body 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Cumulative amortisation adjustment following revaluation 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Amortisation At 31 March 2015 1 0 0 0 0 1 0

Net Book Value at 31 March 2015 14 0 0 0 0 14 0

Purchased 14 0 0 0 0 14 0

Donated 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Government Granted 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total at 31 March 2015 14 0 0 0 0 14 0

Revaluation Reserve Balance for intangible assets

Computer 

Software: 

Purchased

Computer 

Software: 

Internally 

Generated

Licences & 

Trademarks Patents 

Development 

Expenditure 

(internally 

generated) Total 2013/14

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Balance at 1 April 2014 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Revaluation gains 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Impairments 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Release to general fund 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Other movements 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

At 31 March 2015 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
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14 Intangible non-current assets cont'd

14.1 Donated assets

The clinical commissioning group did not hold any donated intangible non-current assets at 31 March 2015.

14.2 Government granted assets

The clinical commissioning group did not hold any intangible non-current government granted assets at 31 March 2015.

14.3 Revaluation

The clinical commissioning group had no revaluation at 31 March 2015

14.4 Compensation from third parties

14.5 Write downs to recoverable amount

14.6 Non-capitalised assets

The clinical commissioning group had no significant intangible non-current assets not recognised as assets because they

didn't meet the recognition criteria of IAS38 as at 31 March 2015

14.7 Temporarily idle assets

The clinical commissioning group had no temporarily idle assets as at 31 March 2015.

14.8 Cost or valuation of fully amortised assets

The clinical commissioning group had no fully amortised assets still in use as at 31 March 2015.

14.9 Economic lives

Computer software: purchased 5 5

Computer software: internally generated - -

Licences & trademarks - -

Patents - -

Development expenditure (internally generated) - -

The clinical commissioning group had no compensation from third parties for intangible non-current assets impaired, lost or

given up at 31 March 2015.

The clinical commissioning group had no intangible non-current assets written down to recoverable amounts at 31 March

2015

Minimum 

Life (years)

Maximum 

Life (Years)

21



NHS Somerset CCG - Annual Accounts 2014-15

15 Investment property

The clinical commissioning group had no investment property as at 31 March 2015

16 Inventories

Drugs Consumables Energy Work in 

Progress

Loan 

Equipment

Total

2013/14

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Balance at 1 April 2014 0 0 3 0 0 3 5

Additions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Inventories recognised as an expense in the period 0 0 (1) 0 0 (1) (2)

Write-down of inventories (including losses) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Reversal of write-down previously taken to the statement of comprehensive net expenditure 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Transfer (to)/from other public sector body 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

At 31 March 2015 0 0 2 0 0 2 3

22



NHS Somerset CCG - Annual Accounts 2014-15

17  Trade and other receivables Current Non-current Current Non-current

2014-15 2014-15 2013-14 2013-14

£000 £000 £000 £000

NHS receivables: Revenue 724 0 1,045 0

NHS receivables: Capital 0 0 0 0

NHS prepayments and accrued income 2,021 0 0 0

Non-NHS receivables: Revenue 1,672 0 1,146 0

Non-NHS receivables: Capital 0 0 0 0

Non-NHS prepayments and accrued income 865 0 824 0

Provision for the impairment of receivables 0 0 0 0

VAT 42 0 72 0

Private finance initiative and other public private partnership 

arrangement prepayments and accrued income 0 0 0 0

Interest receivables 0 0 0 0

Finance lease receivables 0 0 0 0

Operating lease receivables 0 0 0 0

Other receivables 0 0 0 0

Total Trade & other receivables 5,324 0 3,087 0

Total current and non current 5,324 3,087

Included above:

Prepaid pensions contributions 0 0

Non-NHS receivables: Revenue includes two invoices disputed by NHS Property Services Ltd totalling £1.069m.

17.1 Receivables past their due date but not impaired 2014-15 2013-14

£000 £000

By up to three months 309 1,079

By three to six months 0 298

By more than six months 1,069 19

Total 1,378 1,396

£252,556 of the amount above has subsequently been recovered post the statement of financial position date.

17.2  Provision for impairment of receivables 2014-15 2013-14

£000 £000

Balance at 1 April 2014 0 0

Amounts written off during the year 0 0

Amounts recovered during the year 0 0

(Increase) decrease in receivables impaired 0 0

Transfer (to) from other public sector body 0 0

Balance at 31 March 2015 0 0

2014-15 2013-14

£000 £000

Receivables are provided against at the following rates:

NHS debt 0 0

The majority of trade is with NHS England. As NHS England is funded by Government to provide funding to clinical

commissioning groups to commission services, no credit scoring of them is considered necessary.
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18 Other financial assets

The clinical commissioning group had no other financial assets as at 31 March 2015.

19 Other current assets

The clinical commissioning group had no other current assets as at 31 March 2015.

20 Cash and cash equivalents

2014-15 2013-14

£000 £000

Balance at 1 April 2014 47 0

Net change in year 3 47

Balance at 31 March 2015 50 47

Made up of:

Cash with the Government Banking Service 50 47

Cash with Commercial banks 0 0

Cash in hand 0 0

Current investments 0 0

Cash and cash equivalents as in statement of financial position 50 47

Bank overdraft: Government Banking Service 0 0

Bank overdraft: Commercial banks 0 0

Total bank overdrafts 0 0

Balance at 31 March 2015 50 47

Patients’ money held by the clinical commissioning group, not 

included above 0 0

21 Non-current assets held for sale

The clinical commissioning group had no non-current assets held for sale as at 31 March 2015.
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22 Analysis of impairments and reversals

22.1 Analysis of impairments and reversals: property, plant and equipment

2014-15 2013-14

£000 £000

Impairments and reversals charged to the statement of comprehensive net expenditure

Loss or damage resulting from normal operations 0 0

Over-specification of assets 0 0

Abandonment of assets in the course of construction 0 0

Total charged to departmental expenditure limit 0 0

Unforeseen obsolescence 0 0

Loss as a result of catastrophe 0 0

Other 0 (75)

Change in market price 0 0

Total charged to annually managed expenditure 0 (75)

Total impairments and reversals charged to the statement of 

comprehensive net expenditure 0 (75)

Impairments and Reversals charged to the revaluation reserve

Loss or damage resulting from normal operations 0 0

Over-specification of assets 0 0

Abandonment of assets in the course of construction 0 0

Unforeseen obsolescence 0 0

Loss as a result of catastrophe 0 0

Other 0 0

Change in market price 0 0

Total Impairments and reversals charged to the revaluation reserve 0 0

0 0

Total impairments and reversals of property, plant and equipment 0 (75)

Total impairments and reversals of property, plant and equipment charged to the revaluation reserve

The clinical commissioning group made no impairments in 2014-15. The 2013-14 impairment of £75,000 related to the legacy assets of 

£107,000 Information and Technology equipment which transferred from Somerset Primary Care Trust. The legacy information provided to 

the clinical commissioning group was based on generic invoices which are not able to be identified against specific pieces of equipment.
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22 Analysis of impairments and reversals cont'd

22.2 Analysis of impairments and reversals: totals

2014-15 2013-14

£000 £000

Impairments and reversals charged to the statement of comprehensive net expenditure

Departmental expenditure limit 0 0

Annually managed expenditure 0 (75)

Total impairments and reversals charged to the statement of comprehensive net expenditure 0 (75)

Impairments and reversals charged to the revaluation reserve 0 0

Total impairments 0 (75)

Of the above:

Impairment on revaluation to “modern equivalent asset” basis 0 0

Property, plant & equipment charged to departmental expenditure limit 0 0

Intangible assets charged to departmental expenditure limit 0 0

Total charged to departmental expenditure limit 0 0

Property, plant & equipment charged to annually managed expenditure 0 0

Intangible assets charged to annually managed expenditure 0 0

Total charged to annually managed expenditure 0 0

0 0

Impairments and reversals of donated and government granted assets charged to the statement of 

comprehensive net expenditure included above:

Total impairments and reversals of donated and government granted assets charged to the 

statement of comprehensive net expenditure
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Current Non-current Current Non-current

2014-15 2014-15 2013-14 2013-14

£000 £000 £000 £000

Interest payable 0 0 0 0

NHS payables: revenue 5,858 0 5,055 0

NHS payables: capital 0 0 0 0

NHS accruals and deferred income 1,984 0 467 0

Non-NHS payables: revenue 3,353 0 6,743 0

Non-NHS payables: capital 0 0 0 0

Non-NHS accruals and deferred income 18,066 0 15,449 0

Social security costs 55 0 58 0

VAT 0 0 0 0

Tax 60 0 66 0

Payments received on account 0 0 0 0

Other payables 499 0 853 0

Total Trade & Other Payables 29,875 0 28,691 0

Total current and non-current 29,875 28,691

24 Other financial liabilities

The clinical commissioning group had no other financial liabilities as at 31 March 2015.

25 Other liabilities

The clinical commissioning group had no other liabilities as at 31 March 2015.

The clinical commissioning group had no borrowings as at 31 March 2015.

Other payables include £81,842 outstanding pension contributions at 31 March 2015

23 Trade and other payables

26 Borrowings
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27 Private finance initiative, LIFT and other service concession arrangements

28 Finance lease obligations

The clinical commissioning group had no finance lease obligations as at 31 March 2015.

29 Finance lease receivables

The clinical commissioning group had no finance lease receivables as at 31 March 2015.

29.1 Finance leases as lessor

The clinical commissioning group had no private finance initiative, LIFT or other service concession

arrangements that were included or excluded from the Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2015.

The clinical commissioning group had no unguaranteed residual value accruing as at 31 March 2015

The clinical commissioning group had no accumulated allowance for uncollectible lease receivables as at 31 

March 2015.
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30   Provisions

Current Non-current Current Non-current

2014-15 2014-15 2013-14 2013-14

£000 £000 £000 £000

Pensions relating to former directors 0 0 0 0

Pensions relating to other staff 0 0 0 0

Restructuring 0 0 0 0

Redundancy 0 0 0 0

Agenda for change 0 0 0 0

Equal pay 0 0 0 0

Legal claims 0 0 0 0

Continuing care 372 0 451 0

Other 150 0 0 0

Total 522 0 451 0

Total current and non-current 522 451

Pensions  

Relating to 

Former 

Directors

Pensions 

Relating to 

Other Staff Restructuring Redundancy

Agenda for 

Change Equal Pay Legal  Claims

Continuing 

Care Other Total

£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s

Balance at 1 April 2014 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 451 0 451

Arising during the year 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 355 150 505

Utilised during the year 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (270) 0 (270)

Reversed unused 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (164) 0 (164)

Unwinding of discount 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Change in discount rate 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Transfer (to) from other public sector body 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Balance at 31 March 2015 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 372 150 522

Expected timing of cash flows:

Within one year 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 372 150 522

Between one and five years 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

After five years 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Balance at 31 March 2015 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 372 150 522

The "Continuing Care" provision is an assessment of the continuing care cases which are currently being reviewed by the Clinical Commissioning Group's panel. This has been based on the best professional judgement in line with 

IAS37. All of the cases awaiting panel have been provided for and the calculation has been based on estimated cost and the probability of success, where the probability factor applied is based on success rates in the current 

financial year or professional judgement. A contingent liability in respect of this provision is shown in note 31.

Under the Accounts Direction issued by NHS England on 12 February 2014, NHS England is responsible for accounting for liabilities relating to NHS Continuing Healthcare claims relating to periods of care before establishment of 

the clinical commissioning group. However, the legal liability remains with the CCG. The total value of legacy NHS Continuing Healthcare provisions accounted for by NHS England on behalf of this CCG at 31 March 2015 is £559k

The "Other" provision is a commitment made by the clinical commissioning group to South Western Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust to contribute towards the infrastructure and redundancy costs arising as a result of the 

award of the 111 and primary care out of hours contracts to an alternative provider with effect from 30 June 2015.
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31 Contingencies

2014-15 2013-14

£000 £000

Contingent liabilities

Continuing Health Care 56 72

Litigation 1 0

Amounts recoverable against contingent liabilities 0 0

Net value of contingent liabilities 57 72

Contingent assets

Amounts payable against contingent assets 0 0

Net value of contingent assets 0 0
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32 Commitments

32.1 Capital commitments

32.2 Other financial commitments

33 Financial instruments

33.1 Financial risk management

33.1.1 Currency risk

33.1.2 Interest rate risk

33.1.3 Credit risk

33.1.4 Liquidity risk

The clinical commissioning group had no contracted capital commitments not otherwise included in these financial statements as at 31 March 

2015.

The clinical commissioning group had no non-cancellable contracts (which are not leases, private finance initiative contracts

or other service concession arrangements) as at 31 March 2015.

The Clinical Commissioning Group borrows from government for capital expenditure, subject to affordability as confirmed by NHS England. 

The borrowings are for 1 to 25 years, in line with the life of the associated assets, and interest is charged at the National Loans Fund rate, fixed 

for the life of the loan. The Clinical Commissioning Group therefore has low exposure to interest rate fluctuations.

Because the majority of the NHS Clinical Commissioning Group and revenue comes parliamentary funding, NHS Clinical Commissioning 

Group has low exposure to credit risk. The maximum exposures as at the end of the financial year are in receivables from customers, as 

disclosed in the trade and other receivables note.

NHS Clinical Commissioning Group is required to operate within revenue and capital resource limits, which are financed from resources voted 

annually by Parliament. The NHS Clinical Commissioning Group draws down cash to cover expenditure, as the need arises. The NHS Clinical 

Commissioning Group is not, therefore, exposed to significant liquidity risks.

Financial reporting standard IFRS 7 requires disclosure of the role that financial instruments have had during the period in creating or changing 

the risks a body faces in undertaking its activities.

Because NHS Clinical Commissioning Group is financed through parliamentary funding, it is not exposed to the degree of financial risk faced 

by business entities. Also, financial instruments play a much more limited role in creating or changing risk than would be typical of listed 

companies, to which the financial reporting standards mainly apply. The clinical commissioning group has limited powers to borrow or invest 

surplus funds and financial assets and liabilities are generated by day-to-day operational activities rather than being held to change the risks 

facing the clinical commissioning group in undertaking its activities.

Treasury management operations are carried out by the finance department, within parameters defined formally within the NHS Clinical 

Commissioning Group standing financial instructions and policies agreed by the Governing Body. Treasury activity is subject to review by the 

NHS Clinical Commissioning Group and internal auditors.

The NHS Clinical Commissioning Group is principally a domestic organisation with the great majority of transactions, assets and liabilities 

being in the UK and sterling based. The NHS Clinical Commissioning Group has no overseas operations. The NHS Clinical Commissioning 

Group and therefore has low exposure to currency rate fluctuations.
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33 Financial instruments cont'd

33.2 Financial assets

At ‘fair value 

through profit and 

loss’

Loans and 

Receivables

Available for 

Sale Total

2014-15 2014-15 2014-15 2014-15

£000 £000 £000 £000

Embedded derivatives 0 0 0 0

Receivables:

�          NHS 0 724 0 724

�          Non-NHS 0 1,672 0 1,672

Cash at bank and in hand 0 50 0 50

Other financial assets 0 0 0 0

Total at 31 March 2015 0 2,446 0 2,446

At ‘fair value 

through profit and 

loss’

Loans and 

Receivables

Available for 

Sale Total

2013-14 2013-14 2013-14 2013-14

£000 £000 £000 £000

Embedded derivatives 0 0 0 0

Receivables:

�          NHS 0 1,045 0 1,045

�          Non-NHS 0 1,146 0 1,146

Cash at bank and in hand 0 47 0 47

Other financial assets 0 0 0 0

Total at 31 March 2014 0 2,238 0 2,238

33.3 Financial liabilities

At ‘fair value 

through profit and 

loss’ Other Total

2014-15 2014-15 2014-15

£000 £000 £000

Embedded derivatives 0 0 0

Payables:

�          NHS 0 7,842 7,842

�          Non-NHS 0 21,919 21,919

Private finance initiative, LIFT and finance lease obligations 0 0 0

Other borrowings 0 0 0

Other financial liabilities 0 0 0

Total at 31 March 2015 0 29,761 29,761

At ‘fair value 

through profit and 

loss’ Other Total

2013-14 2013-14 2013-14

£000 £000 £000

Embedded derivatives 0 0 0

Payables:

�          NHS 0 5,521 5,521

�          Non-NHS 0 22,193 22,193

Private finance initiative, LIFT and finance lease obligations 0 0 0

Other borrowings 0 0 0

Other financial liabilities 0 0 0

Total at 31 March 2014 0 27,714 27,714
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34 Operating segments

The clinical commissioning group consider they have only one segment: commissioning of healthcare services.

Gross 

expenditure
Income Net expenditure Total assets Total liabilities Net assets

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

NHS Somerset CCG 673,273 (4,727) 668,546 5,571 (30,397) (24,826)

Total 673,273 (4,727) 668,546 5,571 (30,397) (24,826)

2013/14 653,658               (3,945)                 649,713               3,137                   (29,142)               (26,005)               

Reconciliation between Operating Segments and SoCNE

31-Mar-15

£'000

Total net expenditure reported for 

operating segments
668,546

Reconciling items:

Total net expenditure per the 

Statement of Comprehensive Net 

Expenditure

668,546

Reconciliation between Operating Segments and SoFP

31-Mar-15

£'000

Total assets reported for operating 

segments
5,571

Reconciling items:

Total assets per Statement of 

Financial Position
5,571

31-Mar-15

£'000

Total liabilities reported for operating 

segments
(30,397)

Reconciling items:

Total liabilities per Statement of 

Financial Position
(30,397)
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35 Pooled budgets

2013/14 2014/15

£ £

Income from:

Adults & Health Services 1,083,000 1,144,157

Children & Learning Services 347,991 354,835

Clinical Commissioning Group (Inclu. CHC Inc) 
1

1,475,054 1,380,066

Section 256 689,698 1,094,446

Other Income 3,288

Total funding 3,595,743 3,976,792

Expenditure:

Equipment, Delivery, Minor Works 
2

3,461,971 3,805,538

Management and Administration 83,916 83,709

Total Expenditure 3,545,887 3,889,247

Variation (49,856) (87,545)

Notes:
1

Includes £333,603 CHC Income. A debtor accrual for Quarter 4 has been raised for £63,944.
2

Includes £35,377 Creditor Provision and £87,422 Debtor Provision. 
3

50% of the underspend will be repaid to CCG (£43,772)

2013/14 2014/15

£ £

Income from:

Adults & Health Services 203,500 203,500

Clinical Commissioning Group 203,500 203,500

Funding Carried Forward 122,000 63,106

Total Funding 529,000 470,106

Expenditure:

Universal Carers Support Service 403,894 407,000

CAMHS Assessment Workers 62,000 0

Carers Support Worker Salary/Running Costs 0 24,197

Earmarked Reserve 63,106 38,909

Total Expenditure 529,000 470,106

Variation 0 0

Notes:
1

£24,197 has been drawn down from the earmarked reserve in 2014/15 leaving a balance of £38,909 in the reserve.
2

No Creditor or Debtor Provision has been made.

2013/14 2014/15

£ £

Income from:

Adults & Health Services 41,700,500 46,840,000

Pensions Equalisation Reserve 483,000 383,000

Clinical Commissioning Group 16,118,305 16,811,613

Section 256 0 1,455,825

Income From Charges & Grant Income 5,781,723 6,330,515

Total Funding 64,083,528 71,820,953

Expenditure:

Purchasing (Independent Sector) 32,396,381 38,222,907

Residential Services 9,933,793 10,040,730

Supported Housing 15,636,631 15,687,934

Day Services 6,213,797 6,138,247

Community Teams 3,322,879 3,196,072

Mental Capacity 278,918 570,637

Total Expenditure 67,782,399 73,856,527

Variation 3,698,871 2,035,574

Notes:
1 Creditor Provision of £3,632,092 has been made.

2
Debtor Provision of £467,941 has been made.

3
The CCG share of the overspend (£678,525) has been funded Section 256 monies in 2014/15.

Certificate of Group Manager - Finance, Community Services Directorate

I certify that the above pooled budget memorandum of accounts accurately discloses

the income received and expenditure incurred in accordance with the partnership agreement,

as amended by any subsequent agreed variations, entered into under section 75 of the

National Health Service Act 2006.

RRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRRR..

Martin Young

Finance Group Manager - Community Directorate

Somerset County Council

The clinical commissioning group had entered into a pooled budget with Somerset County Council. The pool is hosted by Somerset County 

Council.

Under the arrangement funds are pooled under Section 75 of the NHS Act 2006 for the Learning Disability Service, the Integrated Community 

Equipment Service and the Carers Support Service.

2014-15 POOLED BUDGET MEMORANDUM OF ACCOUNTS

Integrated Community Equipment Service

Carers Pooled Budget

Learning Disabilities Services
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36 NHS Lift investments

The clinical commissioning group had no NHS LIFT investments as at 31 March 2015.

37 Intra-government and other balances

Current 

Receivables

Non-current 

Receivables

Current 

Payables

Non-current 

Payables

2014-15 2014-15 2014-15 2014-15

£000 £000 £000 £000

Balances with:

�          Other Central Government bodies 1,084 0 586 0

�          Local Authorities 199 0 1,438 0

Balances with NHS bodies:

�          NHS bodies outside the Departmental Group 248 0 121 0

�          NHS Trusts and Foundation Trusts 2,497 0 7,721 0

Total of balances with NHS bodies: 2,745 0 7,842 0

�          Public corporations and trading funds 0 0 0 0

�          Bodies external to Government 1,296 0 20,009 0

Total balances at 31 March 2015 5,324 0 29,875 0

Current 

Receivables

Non-current 

Receivables

Current 

Payables

Non-current 

Payables

2013-14 2013-14 2013-14 2013-14

£000 £000 £000 £000

Balances with:

�          Other Central Government bodies 1,196 0 310 0

�          Local Authorities 43 0 1,402 0

Balances with NHS bodies:

�          NHS bodies outside the Departmental Group 247 0 856 0

�          NHS Trusts and Foundation Trusts 798 0 4,665 0

Total of balances with NHS bodies: 1,045 0 5,521 0

�          Public corporations and trading funds 0 0 0 0

�          Bodies external to Government 803 0 21,458 0

Total balances at 31 March 2014 3,087 0 28,691 0
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38 Related party transactions

Payments to 

Related 

Party

Receipts 

from 

Related 

Party

Amounts 

owed to 

Related 

Party

Amounts 

due from 

Related 

Party

31 March 2015 £000 £000 £000 £000

Chair Dr Matthew Dolman is a GP Partner at Axbridge and Wedmore Medical Practice, is Chair 

of North Sedgemoor GP Federation, is one of the clinical commissioning group's nominated 

members of the Somerset County Council's Health and Wellbeing Board, his wife is an extended 

scope physiotherapist at Somerset Partnership NHS Foundation Trust and has an interest in 

Somerset Primary Healthcare Ltd.

Axbridge & Wedmore Medical Practice 80 0 0 0

North Sedgemoor GP Federation 60 0 0 0

Somerset County Council 33,631 2,214 1,273 199

Vice Chair Lou Evans is a director at ARC Homes, is a director at Martin Brooks Associates 

Limited, his wife is employed as an Occupational Therapist at Somerset Partnership NHS 

Foundation Trust, a member of the Avon and Somerset main committee for selection of a Justice 

of the Peace and is the clinical commissioning group nominated governor for Yeovil District 

Hospital NHS Foundation Trust.

Yeovil District Hospital NHSFT 79,044 0 695 710

Managing Director/ Accountable Officer David Slack is one of the clinical commissioning group's 

nominated members of the Somerset County Council's Health and Wellbeing Board.

Somerset County Council 33,631 2,214 1,273 199

Chair of the Clinical Operations Group Dr Rosie Benneyworth was a GP Partner at St James 

Medical Practice and is now a salaried GP at Victoria Gate Surgery, a member of the Taunton 

GP Federation, is Medical Director for South West Academic Health Science Network, she has 

an interest in Somerset Primary Healthcare Ltd, is one of the clinical commissioning group's 

nominated members and Vice Chair of the Somerset County Council's Health and Wellbeing 

Board, is a member of the Neuro Foundation and is a fellow of the National Institute for Health 

and Care Excellence.

St James Medical Practice - withdrew 29/01/15 122 0 0 0

Victoria Gate Surgery - added 29/01/15 33 0 0 0

Taunton GP Federation 193 0 0 0

Somerset County Council 33,631 2,214 1,273 199

South West Academic Health Science Network - added 26/02/15 20 0 0 0

GP Dr Geoff Sharp is a GP Partner at The Park Medical Partnership, PMS Practice which also is 

a provider to Shepton Mallet Community Hospital under contract from Somerset Partnership 

NHS Foundation Trust, is the Chair of Central Mendip GP Federation, provides out of hours 

services to South Western Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust and has an interest in 

Somerset Primary Healthcare Limited.

Park Medical Partnership, PMS Practice 12 0 0 0

Central Mendip GP Federation 103 0 0 0

GP Dr Iain Phillips is a GP Partner at Wincanton Health Centre, is a Director and Shareholder of 

Pathways Health and Social Care Alliance Ltd, is a Director of Wincanton Healthcare Ltd, of 

which Wincanton Health Centre is provider of medical service to Wincanton Community Hospital, 

which is part of Somerset Partnership NHS Foundation Trust, is a Partner at Somerton Surgery 

and has an interest in Somerset Primary Healthcare Limited.

Wincanton Health Centre 143 0 0 0

Pathways Health and Social Care Alliance Ltd 4 0 0 0

Somerton Surgery 51 0 0 0

Chief Finance Officer and Director of Performance and Acute Commissioning Paul Goodwin has 

no interests to declare - Went on Secondment from 22/9/14.

Specialist Doctor Dr Ian Lewin is the clinical commissioning group nominated Governor of 

Taunton & Somerset NHS Foundation Trust

Taunton & Somerset NHSFT 169,158 0 1,047 1,503

Interim Chief Finance Officer and Director of Performance and Acute Commissioning Alison 

Henly has no interests to declare - From 22/9/14.

Registered Nurse Carolyn Moore is owner and director of Be More Consultancy, is a director at 

Health & Care Inquiry Associates, is the clinical commissioning group's nominated Governor of 

Somerset Partnership NHS Foundation Trust and is a staff nurse, nurse bank, at Yeovil District 

Hospital NHS Foundation Trust.

Somerset Partnership NHSFT 130,506 77 2,597 42

Director of Public Health Trudi Grant is Director of Public Health at Somerset County Council.

Somerset County Council 33,631 2,214 1,273 199

Lay Member Eileen Tipper has no interests to declare.

Director of Clinical and Collaborative Commissioning Ann Anderson has no interests to declare.

Director of Patient Engagement and Strategy Dr Victoria Downing-Burn has no interests to 

declare - left 7/8/14

Director of Quality, Safety and Governance Lucy Watson has no interests to declare

Note

The related parties have been identified through the register of members' interests, but have been amended to include related parties only. Under IAS 24 a 

person is a related party if they: -

(i) have control or joint control over the reporting entity; 

(ii) have significant influence over the reporting entity; or 

(iii) are a member of the key management personnel 

All relevant organisations have then been checked for the level of business activity on both the purchase and sales ledgers i.e. a governor of Yeovil District 

Hospital NHS Foundation Trust will have the total of all the annual transactions along with the year end debtor and creditor values noted against their name.

Details of related party transactions with individuals are as follows:
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Payments to 

Related 

Party

Receipts 

from 

Related 

Party

Amounts 

owed to 

Related 

Party

Amounts 

due from 

Related 

Party

31 March 2015 £000 £000 £000 £000

Payments to 

Related 

Party

Receipts 

from 

Related 

Party

Amounts 

owed to 

Related 

Party

Amounts 

due from 

Related 

Party

31 March 2015 £000 £000 £000 £000

NHS England 949 683 93 216

South West Commissioning Support Unit 5,944 56 17 0

NHS FOUNDATION TRUSTS

Dorset County Hospital NHS Foundation Trust 2,311 0 0 23

Great Western Hospital NHS Foundation Trust 523 0 6 0

Royal Devon and Exeter NHS Foundation Trust 6,723 0 109 3

Royal National Hospital for Rheumatic Diseases NHS Foundation Trust - merged with RUH Bath 

NHSFT 01/02/15

1,916 0 0 0

Royal United Hospital Bath NHS Foundation Trust - FT status 01/11/14 11,188 0 495 0

Salisbury NHS Foundation Trust 696 0 22 0

Somerset Partnership NHS Foundation Trust 130,506 77 2,597 42

South Western Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust 25,984 0 203 5

Taunton and Somerset NHS Foundation Trust 169,158 0 1,047 1,503

University Hospitals Bristol NHS Foundation Trust 7,352 0 20 9

Yeovil District Hospital NHS Foundation Trust 79,044 0 695 710

NHS TRUSTS

North Bristol NHS Trust 6,649 5 0 179

Northern Devon Healthcare NHS Trust 511 0 20 0

Royal United Hospital Bath NHS Trust - FT status 01/11/14 14,942 0 0 0

Weston Area Health NHS Trust 14,193 0 53 0

The Department of Health is regarded as a related party. During the year the clinical commissioning group has had a significant number of material 

transactions with entities for which the Department is regarded as the parent Department. For example:

In addition, the clinical commissioning group has had a number of material transactions with other government departments and other central and local 

government bodies. Most of these transactions have been with Somerset County Council, NHS Property Services Limited, National Insurance Fund, 

NHS Pension Scheme and Her Majesty Revenue and Customs.
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39 Events after the end of the reporting period

40 Losses and special payments

The clinical commissioning group had no losses and special payments cases during 2014-15.

41 Third party assets

The clinical commissioning group held no third party assets as at 31 March 2015.

42 Financial performance targets

NHS Clinical Commissioning Group have a number of financial duties under the NHS Act 2006 (as amended).

NHS Clinical Commissioning Group performance against those duties was as follows:

2014-15 2014-15 2013-14 2013-14

Target Performance Target Performance

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Expenditure not to exceed income 7,475 7,475 6,367 6,367

Capital resource use does not exceed the amount specified in Directions 200 200 0 0

Revenue resource use does not exceed the amount specified in Directions 676,021 668,546 656,080 649,713

Capital resource use on specified matter(s) does not exceed the amount 

specified in Directions 200 200 0 0

Revenue resource use on specified matter(s) does not exceed the amount 

specified in Directions 661,612 655,377 642,860 636,493

Revenue administration resource use does not exceed the amount specified 

in Directions 14,409 13,169 13,220 13,220

43 Impact of IFRS

44 Analysis of charitable reserves

2014-15 2013-14

£'000 £'000

Unrestricted funds 0 0

Restricted funds 0 0

Endowment funds 0 0

Total 0 0

There are no post balance sheet events which will have a material effect on the financial statements of the clinical commissioning group or consolidated 

group.

Accounting under IFRS had no impact on the results of the clinical commissioning group during the 2014-15 financial year

The revenue administration resource is £13,169,000 from the running cost allowance and £1,240,000 Quality Premium allocation.  The 

Clinical Commissioning Group took the decision to spend all the Quality Premium allocation on Programme activities.
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          Appendix Four 
GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 

 
 
1 INTRODUCTION AND CONTEXT 

 
1.1 The Somerset Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) was licenced from 1 

April 2013 under provisions enacted in the Health and Social Care Act 
2012, which amended the National Health Service Act 2006.  NHS 
Somerset CCG was successfully authorised without any conditions in 
December 2012 as part of the first wave of the CCG authorisation 
process.   

 
1.2 The CCG operated in shadow form prior to 1 April 2013, to allow for the 

completion of the licencing process and the establishment of function, 
systems and processes prior to the CCG taking on its full powers when 
Somerset Primary Care Trust was abolished on 31 March 2013. 

 
1.3 As at 1 April 2014, the NHS Somerset Clinical Commissioning Group was 

licensed without conditions.  
 
2 SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITY 
 
2.1 As Accountable Officer, I have responsibility for maintaining a sound 

system of internal control that supports the achievement of the clinical 
commissioning group’s policies, aims and objectives, whilst safeguarding 
the public funds and assets for which I am personally responsible, in 
accordance with the responsibilities assigned to me in Managing Public 
Money. I also acknowledge my responsibilities as set out in the CCG’s 
Accountable Officer Appointment Letter. 

 
2.2 I am responsible for ensuring that Somerset CCG is administered 

prudently and economically and that resources are applied efficiently and 
effectively, safeguarding financial propriety and regularity. 

 
3 COMPLIANCE WITH THE UK CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE 
 
3.1 We are not required to comply with the UK Corporate Governance Code. 

However, we have reported on our Corporate Governance arrangements 
by drawing upon best practice available, including those aspects of the 
UK Corporate Governance Code we consider to be relevant to the CCG. 

 
3.2 For the financial year ended 31 March 2015, and up to the date of signing 

this statement, we complied with the provisions set out in the Code, and 
applied the principles of the Code. 

 



4 THE CLINICAL COMMISSIONING GROUP GOVERNANCE 
FRAMEWORK 

 
4.1 The National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended), at paragraph 

14L(2)(b) states: 
 

The main function of the governing body is to ensure that the group has 
made appropriate arrangements for ensuring that it complies with such 
generally accepted principles of good governance as are relevant to it. 

 
4.2 Somerset CCG is a membership body comprising of 75 practices.  Each 

practice has a delegate who represents that practice and practices are 
able to align themselves to a locality Federation.  A full list of Member 
Practices is attached as Appendix A.  Each Federation is represented by 
one delegate on the Clinical Operations Group (COG) which in turn 
nominates 4 of its membership to the Governing Body. 

 
4.3 Somerset CCG established a properly constituted Governing Body with 

the appropriate clinical, managerial and lay member skill mix, including: 4 
GPs, a secondary care specialist doctor, a registered nurse, a Director of 
Public Health, 2 independent lay members and the Accountable Officer 
and Chief Finance Officer.  Details of the membership and the attendance 
of those members are set out in Appendix B. 

 
4.4 Organisational structure and accountabilities are clear and well defined.  

Where capacity and/or capability gaps have been identified, actions are 
put in place with expected outcomes and timescales.  Somerset CCG 
clearly articulates its values to stakeholders through its Commissioning 
Plan and associated strategies.  The Organisational Development plan 
includes an assessment of Staff Survey and actions to address issues for 
development. 

 
4.5 The following committees have been established by the Governing Body: 
 

a) Clinical Operations Group (COG) 
b) Audit Committee 
c) Governance Committee 
d) Remuneration Committee 

 
4.6 The remit of each committee is as follows: 

 

Committee Key roles and responsibilities 

Clinical 
Operations 
Group (COG) 

The COG acts as the main work group for the Governing Body and  
undertakes the following overarching functions: 

 

• in conducting its functions ensure that the care and safety of 
patients remains the highest priority  

• overseeing the quality of commissioned services – quality 
being defined as clinically effective, personal and safe care 

• advising the Governing Body on the development of 
commissioning strategies,  strategic priorities and relevant day 



to day clinical commissioning issues 

• overseeing the achievement  of the CCG’s strategic priorities 
as defined and approved by the CCG’s Governing Body 

• acting as the forum for discussion between the members and 
invited others about clinical commissioning matters  

• making recommendations to the Governing Body about issues 
of strategic concern or on those issues sitting outside its scope 
of decision making and limits of authority  

• making clinical commissioning decisions on behalf of the 
Governing Body, within the agreed scope of decision-making 
and limits of authority 

• working actively to promote the CCG’s membership model and 
the voice and influence of member practices and patients 

 

Audit 
Committee 
 

The Audit Committee provides assurance to the Governing Body by 
reviewing the CCG’s systems of financial reporting and internal 
control and ensuring that an effective programme of audit is in 
place.  In particular: 

• the committee shall critically review the CCG’s financial 
reporting and internal control principles and ensure an 
appropriate relationship with both internal and external auditors 
is maintained 

• the Committee is a non-executive committee of the Governing 
Body and has no executive powers, other than those 
specifically delegated in the Terms of Reference 

• the Committee is authorised by the Governing Body to 
investigate any activity within its terms of reference. It is 
authorised to seek any information it requires from any 
employee and all employees are directed to co-operate with 
any request made by the Committee 

• the Committee may require the attendance at its meetings of 
any officer of the CCG and the production of any document 

• the Committee is authorised by the Governing Body to obtain 
outside legal or other independent professional advice and to 
secure the attendance of outsiders with relevant experience 
and expertise if it considers this necessary 
 

Governance 
Committee 

The overarching aim of the Governance Committee is to ensure 
that effective and efficient controls are in place in order to deliver 
the principal objectives of Somerset CCG and in particular: 
 

• to ensure that services are provided in a fair and equitable 
manner, working with other stakeholders, to ensure that the 
delivery of services support individual aspirations and needs 

• to ensure that high standards of patient safety are embedded 
throughout the organisation and those organisations through 
which care is provided to the Somerset population 

• to ensure that the views of service users and carers are central 
to the development and commissioning of health services in 
order to respond to their needs and improve services 

• to ensure service users are treated with dignity and respect, 



recognising the diversity of their needs, expectations and 
beliefs 

• to ensure that care is provided with compassion in safe, clean 
environments that support health and wellbeing for service 
users  

• to ensure that the principles of good governance are embedded 
throughout the organisation 

• to ensure the effective design, implementation and operation of 
the anti-bribery and corruption initiatives 
 

Remuneration 
Committee 
 

The committee shall make recommendations to the Governing 
Body on determinations about pay and remuneration for employees 
of the CCG (Accountable Officer, other officer members and senior 
employees) and people who provide services to the CCG (including 
salary, any performance-related elements/bonuses, other benefits 
including pensions and cars, and contractual terms and termination 
of employment). 
 
The Remuneration Committee shall make recommendations to the 
Governing Body on any proposed remuneration for individual COG 
Members for specific work in addition to their COG role. 
 
The Remuneration Committee is authorised by the Governing Body 
to obtain legal, remuneration or other professional advice as and 
when required, at the CCG’s expense, and to appoint and secure 
the attendance of external consultants and advisors if it considers 
this beneficial.  
 
The Remuneration Committee is authorised to decide on the most 
appropriate action needed by the Governing Body in the 
achievement of its Terms of Reference. 
 

 
4.7 The CCG will from April 2015 take on joint commissioning responsibilities 

for primary care services with NHS England.  To enable this to take place, 
the CCG has amended its constitution and established a Joint Committee 
with its own terms of reference which have both been approved by NHS 
England.  The CCG will be appointing an additional Non-Executive Lay 
Member to its Governing Body with particular responsibilities in relation to 
chairing the Joint Committee and for overview of the primary care 
commissioning functions. 

 
4.8 During 2014/15, the CCG contributed to the consultation undertaken by 

NHS England and the Good Governance Institute to develop tools for 
assessing the effectiveness of governance systems within CCGs.  The 
CCG will be utilising the tools that emerged from the work in order to self-
assess and further develop its systems of governance during 2015/16. 

 
4.9 The CCG’s performance of effectiveness and capability is subject to 

continuous assessment including regular checkpoint assessments with 
NHS England.  The CCG has participated in the NHS England CCG 360 



Stakeholder Survey and will use this feedback to inform its development 
plans once available. From these assessments I am able to report that 
Somerset CCG has been regularly assessed as being an effective 
organisation.    

 

5 THE CLINICAL COMMISSIONING GROUP RISK MANAGEMENT 
FRAMEWORK 

5.1 A clear understanding of the CCG key strategic objectives and a 
commitment to corporate governance will ensure that risk analysis and 
management are applied throughout the organisation. 

 
5.2 The CCG Risk Management Framework is set out in the Risk 

Management Strategy and Policy. This policy supports the adoption of an 
open culture where individuals are encouraged to report adverse incidents 
and near misses to ensure the CCG can use learning and to continuously 
improve health services and commissioning. 

5.3 The purpose of the Risk Management Strategy and Policy is to: 

• demonstrate an organisational risk management structure that 
details all the committees / sub-committees / groups / forums which 
have shared responsibility for managing risk across the organisation  

• approve and monitor the risk management programme and the 
CCG’s policies and procedures for the management of risk 

• outline the process which ensures that the Governing Body 
undertakes a regular review of the Corporate Risk Register and 
Assurance Framework to provide assurance that the Governing 
Body of the CCG can deliver the strategic objectives 

• ensure demonstration of the development of a system for the 
implementation of seamless risk management strategies, in all areas 
of the organisation including business planning and planned 
developments 

• identify within the Risk Management strategy, the documentation 
and process, roles and responsibilities of the key individual(s) in post 
with responsibility for advising on and co-ordinating risk 
management activities 

• identify within the strategy documentation the respective roles, 
responsibilities and accountability undertaken by the executive, lead 
officers and non-executive leads for each area of risk 

• identify the responsibilities of all managers and staff and their 
authority with regard to identifying, assessing and managing risk 

• outline the process for risk assessment for all types of risk  
 
5.4 The CCG is committed to maintaining a sound system of internal control 

including risk management.  By doing this, the organisation aims to 
ensure that they are able to maintain a safe environment for patients 
through the services it commissions, for staff and visitors, and to minimise 
financial loss to the organisation and demonstrate to the public that it is a 
safe, efficient and well led organisation.   

 



5.5 The CCG has an Equality Impact Assessment Policy in place which 
provides the framework to ensure compliance with our statutory 
obligations under the Public Sector Equality Duty 2010 s149, and to 
identify any risks to the organisation.  Equality Impacts are also assessed 
through the cover sheets for all reports that are presented to the 
Governing Body and other Committees of the CCG to ensure 
consideration of equality is integral to planning and implementation in the 
CCG.   

 
5.6 The CCG has an active framework for Patient and Public Engagement 

and has in place Health Forums for each Federation locality, a network of 
Patient Participation Group Chairmen and regular events to seek the 
views of patients and the public. 

 
6 THE CLINICAL COMMISSIONING GROUP’S INTERNAL CONTROL 

FRAMEWORK  
 
6.1 A system of internal control is the set of processes and procedures in 

place in the clinical commissioning group to ensure it delivers its policies, 
aims and objectives.  It is designed to identify and prioritise the risks, to 
evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should 
they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and 
economically. 

 
6.2 The system of internal control allows risk to be managed to a reasonable 

level rather than eliminating all risk; it can therefore only provide 
reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. 

 
6.3 All reports presented to the Governing Body include identified risks.  All 

strategic documents are reviewed by the Clinical Operations Group.  The 
effectiveness of the Committee Structure is continually reviewed internally 
via the Governing Body review programme and against best practice 
where available. 

 
6.4 The Governing Body is engaged and has a clear understanding of the 

CCG’s Five Year Strategy which was approved by the Governing Body in 
June 2014 and the key pressures facing the organisation.  Following 
approval of the CCG Five Year Strategy, the CCG Assurance Framework 
was revised to reflect the changes to the CCG’s revised strategic 
objectives and principle risks to delivery. The CCG Governing Body 
reviews the organisational compliance and delivery of the strategic 
objectives against the Assurance Framework and Corporate Risk register 
on a quarterly basis. 

 
6.5 Attendance at the Governing Body is recorded in the minutes and full 

membership of the Governing Body has been present at the majority of 
the Governing Body meetings and seminars during 2014/15. 

 
6.6 Regular reports are presented to the Governing Body to provide 

assurance on all CCG business and include: 
 

• strategic planning 



• financial management 

• patient safety and quality of clinical care 

• Care Quality Commission inspection reports 

• organisational development 

• performance management and the achievement of national and local 
NHS targets 

• financial management reports 

• patient engagement 

• stakeholder engagement 

• emergency planning 

• compliance with the NHS constitution 

• identified risks and actions to address or mitigate the risks 

• development of clinical commissioning 
 
6.7 The Governing Body’s performance and effectiveness and capability is 

subject to continuous assessment, including assurance meetings with the 
Area Team.  

 
Information Governance 
 

6.8 The NHS Information Governance Framework sets the processes and 
procedures by which the NHS handles information about patients and 
employees, in particular personal identifiable information.  The NHS 
Information Governance Framework is supported by an information 
governance toolkit and the annual submission process provides 
assurances to the clinical commissioning group, other organisations and 
to individuals that personal information is dealt with legally, securely, 
efficiently and effectively. 

 
6.9 We place high importance on ensuring there are robust information 

governance systems and processes in place to help protect patient and 
corporate information.  We have established an information governance 
management framework and have put in place information governance 
processes and procedures in line with the information governance toolkit.  
We have ensured all staff undertake annual information governance 
training and have provided guidance as appropriate to ensure staff are 
aware of their information governance roles and responsibilities. 

 
6.10 The Health and Social Care Act 2012 provides the Health and Social Care 

Information Centre (HSCIC) with powers to collect personal confidential 
information (PCD).  However, the act does not provide for the onward 
disclosure of identifiable data from the HSCIC.  A national solution was 
agreed national to address through a network of Data Management and 
Integration Centres (DMICs) were established, where only named staff 
can control access to identifiable data, with the NHS Information Centre 
having oversight used to manage all patient data. South West 
Commissioning Support Unit (SWCSU) operates a DMIC to cover 
Somerset, Bristol, North Somerset and South Gloucester CCGs. 
 

6.11 Underpinning this arrangement the CCG and SWCSU have developed a 
data processing agreement, which supports the CSU carrying out actions 



on behalf of the CCG. This ensures that the CSU will maintain the 
personal data on behalf of the CCG in a confidential manner, to ensure 
that: 

 

• personal data will only be used if necessary 

• when necessary to process personal data, the minimum amount of 
personal data will be used 

• processing of personal data will only take place where there is a 
legal basis for the use of such data 

• access to personal data will only be provided on a strict need to 
know basis 

• use for any activity outside the current remit of a service specification 
will require specific approval from the CCG Caldicott Guardian, who 
may take such requests to the Governance Committee within the 
CCG 

 
6.12 There are processes in place for incident reporting and investigation of 

serious incidents in relation to information governance.  We are 
developing information risk assessment and management procedures and 
a programme is being established to fully embed an information risk 
culture throughout the organisation. 

 
Pension Obligations 

 

6.13 As an employer with staff entitled to membership of the NHS Pension 
Scheme, control measures are in place to ensure all employer obligations 
contained within the scheme regulations are complied with.  This includes 
ensuring that deductions from salary, employer’s contributions and 
payments into the scheme are in accordance with the scheme rules, and 
that member pension scheme records are accurately updated in 
accordance with the timescales detailed in the regulations. 

 
 
 

Equality, Diversity and Human Rights Obligations 
 

6.14 Control measures are in place to ensure that the CCG complies with the 
required public sector equality duty set out in the Equality Act 2010.  The 
Governing Body approved its Equality & Diversity; Human Rights and 
Engagement Strategy in May 2013 which sets out sets out how the 
organisation manages its obligations.  The implementation of the strategy 
is monitored through the Governance Committee.  

 
6.15 Each paper considered by the Governing Body and COG has had an 

impact assessment undertaken for any equality and diversity 
considerations.   

 
Sustainable Development Obligations 

 

6.16 The CCG adopted the plans that were put in place by Somerset PCT and 
have continued to ensure that our planning encompasses the assessment 



of risks and, wherever possible, to enhance our performance and reduce 
our impact, including against carbon reduction and climate change 
adaptation objectives.  This includes establishing mechanisms to embed 
social and environmental sustainability across policy development, 
business planning and in commissioning. 

 
6.17 We will ensure the CCG complies with its obligations under the Climate 

Change Act 2008, including the Adaptation Reporting power, and the 
Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012. 

 
6.18 The CCG has continued to support its commitments as a socially 

responsible employer.  This includes initiatives to: 
 

• support the cycle to work scheme which also helps to improve the 
health and well-being of staff 

• help the national NHS target of reducing carbon emissions through 
employee travel 

• work with the waste management service provider to increase the 
amount of recycled materials 

• reduce the use of printers and consumables and promote a 
paperless environment 

• continue to integrate the principles of sustainability across the 
organisation 

 
Risk Assessment in Relation to Governance, Risk Management and 
Internal Control 

 
6.19 The Governing Body approved the clinical commissioning group’s Risk 

Management Strategy and Policy at its meeting in April 2013.  The 
Strategy sets out the framework that is in place to assess and manage 
risk, notably through the: 

 
 

• Assurance Framework 

• Risk Register 

• Risk Assessment Framework 

• Incident Reporting and Complaints Management Processes  
 

6.20 The principal risks and the actions being taken to mitigate them have 
been reported on a quarterly basis to the Governing Body and in addition 
managed, on behalf of the Governing Body, through the Governance 
Committee.   

 
6.21 The clinical commissioning group recognises that the strategic benefits to 

be achieved through risk management which include: 
 

• improved corporate decision making through the high visibility of risk 
exposure, both for individual activities and major projects, across the 
whole of the organisation 



• a progressive management style and a culture of continuous 
improvement that is enhanced by the encouragement of openness in 
relation to risk 

• the objectives of the organisation and its stakeholders are more 
likely to be realised through the early identification and proactive 
management of threats to cost, time and performance 

• the needs of corporate governance are met by embedding the 
management of risk processes which provide a clear message and 
directives 

• there is a clear ownership and accountability for risks and their 
management so that they are effectively monitored and proactively 
managed 

• financial benefit to the organisation through improved  “value for 
money” potential and better management of project and programme 
finance 

• management of project risk is carried out within the wider context of 
programmes, thus minimising the risk of individual project failure 
through greater visibility of the potential impact of other projects 

• consistency of approach through high-level monitoring and direction 

• creation of an environment for the conscious acceptance of business 
risk on an informed basis 

• improved contingency plans and business continuity plans 

• better awareness in all personnel of the cost and benefit implications 
of their actions 
 

6.22 The following methods are to be used in the identification and 
management of risk: 

 

• maintenance of an organisation wide risk register  

• involvement of all staff in the assessment of risk 

• ongoing analysis of risk 

• identifying new risks from significant events and near misses 

• root cause analysis of significant events and serious untoward 
incidents 

• identifying new risks from national reporting e.g. Central Alert 
System (CAS), Medicines and Healthcare Products Regulatory 
Agency (MHRA) 

• NHS Litigation Authority risk pooling schemes and associated 
reporting 

 
6.23 The CCG has established a governance structure to ensure that risks are 

being managed at the appropriate level as required by the terms of 
reference for each committee 

 
6.24 The Governing Body, the Governance Committee and the CCG are 

authorised to establish their own committees and sub-committees to 
assist them in discharging their respective responsibilities, and to provide 
the appropriate controls and manage specific requirements on behalf of 
the organisation. 

 



6.25 The overall clinical commissioning group committee level responsibility for 
risk management rests with the Governance Committee.  Other 
Committees with responsibility for risk management are the: 

 

• Audit Committee 

• Clinical Operations Group 

• Leadership Team 

• Patient Safety and Quality Assurance Committee 

• Health and Safety and Environment Committee 

• Information Governance and Health Records and Caldicott 
Committee 
 

6.26 Staff are involved in risk management both through the incident reporting 
process and the proactive management of risk which includes risk 
management issues identified on agendas, reports and the cover sheets 
that are presented to the respective Committees. 

 
6.27 The CCG risk and control framework is based on the methodology and 

principles outlined in the publications: 
 

• Integrated Governance Handbook 2006 

• A risk matrix for risk managers – NPSA January 2008 

• The Intelligent Board 2010 
 

6.28 The CCG procedural documents support the risk management and 
assurance processes and these include: 

 

• Risk Management Strategy and Policy 

• Serious Untoward Incident Policy 

• Being Open Policy 

• Standards of Business and Managing Conflicts of Interest Policy 

• Acceptance of Gifts, Hospitality and Commercial Sponsorship Policy 

• Incident Reporting Policy 

• Strategy for Improving Health and Health Inequalities  

• Equality and Diversity, Human Resources and Patient Engagement 
Strategy 

• Sustainability Development and Carbon Management Strategy 

• Emergency Planning and Resilience Policy 

• Incident Response Plan 

• Business Continuity Plan 

• Urgent and Emergency Care Strategy 

• Fraud Response Plan 

• CCG Constitution incorporating the Standing Orders, Scheme of 
Delegation and Standing Financial Instructions 

• Security Management Policy 

• Health and Safety Policy 

• Whistleblowing (Raising Concerns) Policy 
 

6.29 At 31 March 2015 there was one risk on the Corporate Risk Register with 
a red rated retained risk (red risks are those scored over 12 using the 



CCG risk assessment matrix).  The risk related to the proportion of 
patients that do not get treatment within 18 weeks (including 
ophthalmology).   

 
6.30 The remaining 17 risks on the Corporate Risk Register were all scored as 

amber (rating of 12).  Four of these risks had an initial red rating but the 
controls being implemented have been sufficient to mitigate those risks 
effectively and reduce them to an amber rating.  The Governing Body and 
Clinical Operations Group are updated regularly through the performance 
report and balanced scorecard.  The four risks related to: 

 

• Patients funded by Somerset CCG resident at Winterbourne View 

• Dementia diagnosis rates 

• Capital costs for the development of the Shepton Mallet health 
campus 

• NHS 111 response call times 
 
6.31 The CCG is working closely with the Local Authority through the Health 

and Well Being Board and any risks relating to that work and, in particular, 
the management of pooled budgets and the Better Care Fund are being 
managed through the Directorate level relationships between the CCG 
and Local Authority. 

 
7 REVIEW OF ECONOMY, EFFICIENCY AND EFFECTIVENESS OF THE 

USE OF RESOURCES 
 
7.1 The Audit Committee is responsible for seeking assurance and 

overseeing Internal and External Audit services, reviewing financial and 
information systems and monitoring the integrity of the financial 
statements and reviewing significant financial reporting judgments.  The 
committee reviews the system of governance, risk management and 
internal control, across the whole of the organisation’s activities. 

 
7.2 The Audit Committee receives regular reports from Internal and External 

audit, Counter fraud and the Governance Committee. 
 
7.3 The Audit Committee supports the view that fraud against the NHS will not 

be tolerated.  All genuine suspicions of fraud are investigated and if 
proven the strongest sanctions are sought against the perpetrators.   

 
7.4 The Local Counter Fraud Specialist (LCFS) is responsible for tackling 

fraud, corruption and bribery affecting the Trust.  A comprehensive 
programme of counter fraud work was delivered in 2014/15 addressing all 
7 generic areas of the national counter fraud strategy. 

 
7.5 Somerset has historically taken a very robust approach to counter fraud 

work, the LCFS is well resourced in terms of work plan days and the Audit 
Committee and senior management throughout the organisation 
understand the importance of counter fraud work and fully support the 
LCFS and Chief Finance Officer and Director of Performance in 
conducting that work. 



 
7.6 The LCFS has developed key relationships with the following 

teams/directorates, Human Resources, Recruitment, Payroll, Risk 
Management and Communications.  These relationships coupled with the 
significant work done by the LCFS to develop an anti-fraud culture have 
resulted in good quality referrals being made to the LCFS.  This in turn 
has resulted in a good proportion of cases concluding in civil, criminal 
and/or disciplinary sanctions.  Where possible these sanctions are 
publicised within the organisation to give staff confidence that robust 
action is taken when allegations of fraud are made, this also has a 
significant deterrence effect on other employees and prevents other 
incidents of fraud. 

 
7.7 The LCFS investigated 6 new allegations of fraud relating to the CCG in 

2014/15 and concluded 4 investigations that had commenced in 2013/14.  
Criminal sanctions were imposed in relation to 1 investigation where 
evidence of fraud was found, as a result, one individual was sentenced to 
8 weeks imprisonment suspended for two years, with a two year 
supervision order and a compensation order for £190.80.  A second case 
is currently with the courts awaiting proceedings.  

 
7.8 As a direct result of LCFS work in 2014/15, £190.80 has been recovered 

however the preventative impact will be much greater. 
 
8 REVIEW OF THE EFFECTIVENESS OF GOVERNANCE, RISK 

MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL 
 
8.1 As Accounting Officer I have responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness 

of the system of internal control within the clinical commissioning group. 
 

Capacity to Handle Risk  
 

8.2 Leadership is given to the risk management process by the Director of 
Quality, Safety and Governance supported by all members of the 
Leadership Team. 

 
8.3 Staff are trained or equipped to manage risk in a way appropriate to their 

authority and duties.  Guidance is provided to staff through a variety of 
routes including training, updates through bulletins and learning through 
incidents. 

 
Review of Effectiveness 

 

8.4 As Accountable Officer, I have responsibility for reviewing the 
effectiveness of the system of internal control. My review of the 
effectiveness of the system of internal control is informed by the work of 
the internal auditors and the executive managers and clinical leads within 
the clinical commissioning group who have responsibility for the 
development and maintenance of the internal control framework. I have 
drawn on performance information available to me. My review is also 
informed by comments made by the external auditors in their 
management letter and other reports. 



 
8.5 The Assurance Framework itself provides me with evidence that the 

effectiveness of controls that manage risks to the clinical commissioning 
group achieving its principles objectives have been reviewed and there 
are actions in place to mitigate risks and address gaps in controls. 

 
8.6 I have been advised on the implications of the result of my review of the 

effectiveness of the system of internal control by the Governing Body, the 
Audit Committee and Governance Committee, and a plan is in place to 
ensure continuous improvement of the system. 

 
8.7 The Audit Committee received the Head of Internal Audit’s report on the 

Assurance Framework as part of the internal audit programme 2014/15.  
No significant issues or gaps in assurance were identified in the clinical 
commissioning group risk management and assurance systems or 
processes within the audit. The findings of the audit concluded there was 
moderate assurance for both design and operational effectiveness.  The 
Governing Body can take substantial assurance that the controls upon 
which the organisation relies to manage this area are suitably designed, 
consistently applied and effective.  

 
8.8 The clinical commissioning group has ensured that internal controls have 

been monitored and reviewed in the year, by: 
 

• external and internal audit reports and action plans are submitted to 
the Audit Committee on a regular basis, with the minutes and action 
plans taken to the Governing Body 

 

• reports made by the Local Counter Fraud and Security Management 
service on proactive investigations, suspected frauds or irregularities 
within the Trust or within the country which may have an impact 
upon the trust 

 

• developing and maintaining an Assurance Framework, with officers 
identifying key controls relied upon and an action list where risks 
remain 

 

• work on risk which is monitored and reviewed by the Governance 
Committee, with minutes passed to the Governing Body 

 

• monitoring and investigating complaints - which are reported at the 
Governance Committee, with minutes and action plans passed to the 
Governing Body.  Issues about risks and systems are actioned by 
appropriate lead officers.  

 

• monitoring issues arising from the Patient Advisory Liaison Service 
(PALS) and the impact these may have on systems and internal 
controls. Issues are reported regularly to the Governance 
Committee. 

 



• monitoring and investigating serious untoward incidents and 
reporting on the lessons learned and implementation of action plans 

 

• regular reporting of the financial position of the Clinical 
Commissioning Group to the Governing Body 

 

• monthly reporting to the Governing Body and the Clinical Operations 
Group of the performance position against principal national and 
local targets 

 

• weekly meetings of the Leadership Team to discuss performance 
and key requirements of the organisation, including risk 
management and internal controls 

 

• the Governance Committee receives reports on progress against 
actions planned against identified risk across the organisation. It is 
the responsibility of all Directors to progress identified actions in 
accordance with the Risk Register and associated action plans 

 
8.9 Following completion of the planned audit work for the financial year for 

the clinical commissioning group, the Head of Internal Audit issued an 
independent and objective opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of 
the clinical commissioning group’s system of risk management, 
governance and internal control. The Head of Internal Audit concluded 
that: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
8.10 During the year the Internal Audit issued the following audit reports with a 

conclusion of limited assurance. 
 

IT (Business 
Continuity and 
Data Security) 

Summary of Report: 
A review of the arrangements in place to safeguard the security 
and integrity of CCG data and to facilitate business continuity, 
found that a disaster recovery plan is in place between the CCG 
and NHS South West Commissioning Support (SWCS) and that 
management arrangements for incident reporting and information 
security.  However, a high risk recommendation was raised to 
address the design of the business continuity plan, which was 
based on the prior Primary Care Trust organisational structure and 

Head of Internal Audit Opinion 

The role of internal audit is to provide to the Governing Body, through the Audit 

Committee (AC), assurances on the adequacy and effectiveness of the system of internal 

to ensure the achievement of the organisation’s objectives in the areas reviewed. 

This annual report provides an overall Head of Internal Audit opinion on the organisation’s 

risk management, control and governance processes, within the scope of work undertaken 

by our firm as outsourced providers of the internal audit service.  It also summarises the 

activities of internal audit for the period. 

Opinion  
The basis for forming my opinion is as follows:  
 

• An assessment of the design and operation of the internal controls underpinning 
the Assurance Framework and supporting processes  

• An assessment of the range of individual opinions arising from risk based audit 
assignments contained within internal audit risk based plans that have been 
reported throughout the year. This assessment has taken account of the relative 
materiality of these areas and management’s progress in respect of addressing 
control weaknesses  

• Any reliance that is being placed upon third party assurances  
 
Overall, we are able to provide moderate assurance that there is a sound system of 
internal control designed to meet the CCG’s objectives and that controls are being 
applied consistently. Moderate assurance is our second highest assurance rating and is 
equivalent to significant assurance under the previous NHS internal audit standards. In 
forming our view we have taken into account that:  
 

• The CCG remains financially sound and is forecasting a year end surplus of 
£7.5m  

• While governance arrangements and key financial controls contained elements 
of substantial assurance, our work also included two opinions that contained 
elements of limited assurance  

• We noted that as at February 2015 the CCG had made satisfactory progress in 
implementing outstanding audit recommendations, with 6/9 recommendations 
completed  

• Our opinion is restricted to work we have performed on the CCG’s controls. 
Notwithstanding, we note that in the first of its two reports, covering the 
period 1 April to 30 September 2014, the service auditor of South West 
Commissioning Support Unit (CSU) raised several qualifications in its reporting 
of internal controls, none of which impact directly on the CCG. A second report, 
covering the second half of the year, has now been issued. The CCG will need to 
consider the findings of both reports when drafting its Annual Governance 
Statement.  

 



did not show evidence of business impact analysis.  A further two 
medium risk recommendations were raised in relation to business 
continuity plans, covering their revision and periodic testing.  
Updates to the CCG’s information governance security policy were 
noted as required in order to reflect current user access rights and 
to document procedures for making amendments to these, 
particularly when staff leave or change roles.   
 
Action Being Undertaken: 
 

• The Business Continuity Plan that was approved in 2014 
was reviewed and updated by each of the four CCG 
directorates and so was an update from the plans previously 
well established in the PCT.  The three new directorates are 
currently reviewing the plans and the impact of the loss of 
critical systems will be incorporated into those plans.  The 
directorate plans will in turn contribute to the corporate plan 
which will be presented to the Governance Committee for 
approval in May 2015. 

• Directorates are in the process of reviewing their Business 
Continuity Plans.  There will be Business Continuity leads 
for each directorate and responsibility for the corporate plan 
sits with the Corporate Governance Manager and Director 
for Quality, Safety and Governance.  The updated website 
has EPRR pages on the staff section of the website which 
will include the updated plans. 

• A programme of testing will be put in place with the 
Directorates and as a CCG wide exercise once the plan has 
been updated.  Learning from exercises to be cascaded and 
reported to the Information Governance Committee and 
Governance Committee as appropriate. 

• The Information Governance Systems Security Policy 
(IGSSP) will be amended to better reflect current practice 
and the updated Human Resources policies.  All policies are 
subject to review and there is a schedule in place to monitor 
the programme of review and the delegation to specific 
committees for approval and oversight. 

• The process for the standard forms for authorisation and 
audit will be incorporated in the revisions to the IGSSP. 

 

Contract 
Management 
(Continuing 
Health Care) 

Summary of Report: 
The CCG is maintaining sound financial control over this significant 
source of expenditure, with NHS England benchmarking 
suggesting costs are being managed effectively in the face of rising 
demand.  An internal staff review of one-to-one and high-cost 
Continuing Health Care (CHC) placements had brought outdated 
legacy pricing structures into line with the NHS Standard Contract, 
and uncovered a case of overcharging by a provider, which was 
subsequently recovered.   A high risk recommendation was raised 
to address the fact that CHC eligibility reviews are not taking place 
with sufficient frequency, which had contributed to at least one 



case of overcharging by a care home.  Three medium risk 
recommendations were raised, as follows: the service specification 
between Somerset CCG and Somerset Partnership Foundation 
Trust (SPFT) did not contain KPIs specific to the performance of 
care reviews.  Contract review meetings between the CCG and 
care home managers have not been taking place on a six-monthly 
basis, as stipulated in the standard contract.  Lastly, it was noted 
that the expiry dates of providers’ indemnities are not being 
monitored.        
 
Action Being Undertaken: 
 

• The reviews of patients in receipt of CHC has been written 
into the service specification of the contract between the 
CCG and SPFT for 2015-16 and any breaches will be 
managed through that process  

• The first medium risk relates also to this issue and has been 
addressed as above 

• Contract review meeting frequencies have been reviewed 
and amended for the contract covering 2015-16. These will 
now be held annually, as per the NHS standard contract, 
and more frequently if necessary based on a risk approach 
basis. In previous iterations of the contract, the CCG 
stipulated 6 monthly meetings whether they were required 
or not, the new contract has addressed this issue.  

• A new database has been created to log this information in 
one place that is easily accessible. Although this 
information was available at the time of the audit, it was not 
readily available and this has now been rectified. 

 
 

 

8.11 During the year the Internal Audit did not issue any audit reports with a 
conclusion of no assurance. 

 
Data Quality 
 

8.12 The CCG has continued to develop data quality in conjunction with the 
CSU during the 2014/15 financial year.   

 
Business Critical Models 
 

8.13 The CCG uses a number of models to support operational management, 
however none of these models are business critical. 
 
Data Security 

 
8.14 Somerset Clinical Commissioning Group have submitted a satisfactory 

level of with the Information Governance (IG) Toolkit with an overall 
compliance rate of 72% for 2014/15 which is an improvement of 20% from 
2013/14.  The clinical commissioning group has no criteria assessed as 



Level 0 or Level 1, 18 at Level 2 and 4 at Level 3.  The level of 
compliance reflects the good progress made in the development of the 
organisation and its information governance structures and processes 
since its first year of operation and provides a robust assessment of the 
progress to date.  An improvement plan is in place to ensure that the work 
continues to develop and that compliance further improves during 2015/16 
which will be monitored through the Information Governance, Records 
Management and Caldicott Committee. 

 
8.15 No lapses in data security for the clinical commissioning group were 

reported during the year. 
 

Discharge of Statutory Functions 
 

8.16 During establishment, the arrangements put in place by the Clinical 
Commissioning Group and explained within the Constitution were 
developed with extensive expert external legal input, to ensure 
compliance with the all relevant legislation.  That legal advice also 
informed the matters reserved for Membership Body and Governing Body 
decision and the scheme of delegation.  The Constitution has been 
updated during 2014/15 with appropriate legal advice and approval by 
NHS England to reflect the changes to the organisational structure and 
responsibilities to be taken on from the 1 April 2015 for Joint 
Commissioning. 

 
8.17 In light of the Harris Review, the clinical commissioning group has 

reviewed all of the statutory duties and powers conferred on it by the 
National Health Service Act 2006 (as amended) and other associated 
legislative and regulations.  As a result, I can confirm that the clinical 
commissioning group is clear about the legislative requirements 
associated with each of the statutory functions for which it is responsible, 
including any restrictions on delegation of those functions. 

 
8.18 Responsibility for each duty and power has been clearly allocated to a 

lead Director.  Directorates have confirmed that their structures provide 
the necessary capability and capacity to undertake all of the clinical 
commissioning group’s statutory duties. 

 
9 CONCLUSION 
 
9.1 My review confirms that Somerset Clinical Commissioning Group has a 

generally sound system of internal control that supports the achievement 
of its policies, aims and objectives and that no significant internal control 
issues have been identified. 

 
 
 
 
David Slack 
Accountable Officer 
28 May 2015 



APPENDIX A 

The member practices of NHS Somerset Clinical Commissioning Group for 2014/15 
are listed below grouped within their federation locality. 
 

Bridgwater Bay Health 

• Quantock Medical Centre 

• Cannington Health Centre 

• East Quay Medical Centre 

• Victoria Park Medical Centre 

• Taunton Road Medical Centre 

• Cranleigh Gardens Medical Centre 

• Redgate Medical Centre 

• Somerset Bridge Medical Centre 

• North Petherton Surgery 

• Edington Surgery, Quarry Ground  
 

Central Mendip 

• Oakhill Surgery 

• Grove House Surgery 

• Park Medical Practice 
 

Chard, Crewkerne and Ilminster 

• Crewkerne Health Centre 

• West One Surgery 

• Summervale Surgery 

• Essex House Medical Centre 

• The Meadows Surgery (Ilminster) 

• Springmead Surgery 

• Tawstock Medical Centre 

• Church View Surgery  
 

East Mendip  

• Mendip Country Practice 

• Beckington Family Practice 

• Frome Medical Practice  
 
North Sedgemoor 

• Burnham and Berrow Medical Centre 

• Brent Area Medical Centre 

• Axbridge and Wedmore  Surgeries  

• Cheddar Medical Centre 
 

Taunton and Area 

• North Curry Health Centre 

• Creech Medical Centre 

• Blackbrook Surgery 

• Warwick House Medical Centre 

• College Way Surgery 

• Victoria Gate Surgery 



• St James Medical Centre 

• French Weir Health Centre 

• Crown Medical Centre  

• Lyngford Park Surgery 

• Quantock Vale Surgery 

• Lister House Surgery 

• Luson Surgery 

• Wellington Medical Centre  
 

South Somerset Healthcare 

• Bruton Surgery 

• Millbrook Surgery 

• Wincanton Health Centre 

• Milborne Port Surgery 

• Queen Camel Medical Centre 

• Somerton Surgery 

• Ilchester Surgery 

• Ryalls Park Medical Centre 

• Oaklands Surgery 

• Penn Hill Surgery 

• Hendford Lodge Medical Centre 

• Preston Grove Medical Centre 

• Abbey Manor Medical Practice  

• Yeovil Health Centre 

• Westlake Surgery (Dr Day) 

• Westlake Surgery (Dr Smith) 

• Hamdon Medical Centre 

• Church Street Surgery 

• North Street Surgery (Langport)  
 

West Mendip 

• Wells City Practice 

• Wells Health Centre 

• Glastonbury Surgery 

• Glastonbury Health Centre 

• The Vine Surgeries (Vriend) 

• The Vine Surgeries (Wolfe) 
 

West Somerset  

• West Somerset Healthcare 

• Porlock Medical Centre 

• Irnham Lodge Surgery 

• Harley House Surgery 

• Exmoor Medical Centre 

• Dunster Surgery 

• Brendon Hills Surgery  

• Highbridge Medical Centre (Independent of Federation at this time) 



APPENDIX B 
 

 
Somerset CCG Governing Body Meetings 2014/15 – Attendance 
Record 

� = Present 
X = Apologies Given 

 
(V) = voting Member 
(NV) = non-voting Member 

 
30 
April 
2014 

 
4 

June 
2014 

 
16 
July 
2014 

 
17 
Sept 
2014 

 
22 
Oct 
2014 

 
19 
Nov 
2014 

 
17 
Dec 
2014 

 
29 
Jan 
2015 

 
26 
Feb 
2015 

 
26 
Mar 
2015 

Dr Matthew Dolman (V) 
Chair 

� � � � � � � � � � 

Dr Rosie Benneyworth (V) 
COG Chair 

� � � � � � � � � � 

Dr Iain Phillips (V) 
GP 

� � � � � � � � � X 

Dr Geoff Sharp (V) 
GP 

� � X � X � X � � X 

David Slack (V) 
Managing Director/ 
Accountable Officer 

� � � � � � � � � � 

Paul Goodwin (V) 
Chief Finance Officer and 
Director of Performance 
(secondment from 
September) 

� � � �       

Alison Henly (V) 
Interim Chief Finance 
Officer and Director of 
Performance (with effect 
from September) 

    � � � � � � 

Lou Evans (V) 
Vice Chair 
Lay Member: Governance 
and Audit 

� � � � � � � � � � 

Eilleen Tipper (V) 
Lay Member: PPE 

� � � � � � � � � � 

Dr Ian Lewin (V) 
Specialist Doctor 

� � � � � X � � � � 

Carolyn Moore (V) 
Registered Nurse 

� � � � � � � � � � 

Trudi Grant (V) 
Director of Public Health 

� � x � � X � � � x 

Lucy Watson (NV) 
Director of Quality and 
Patient Safety 

� � � � � � � � � � 

Ann Anderson (NV) 
Director of Clinical and 
Collaborative 
Commissioning 

� � � � � � � � � � 

Dr Victoria Downing-Burn 
(NV) 
Director Strategy and 
Patient Engagement - left 
August 2014 

� X X        

Peter Rowe (NV) 
Lay Observer (PPG Lay 
Observer) 

� � X X � � � X � � 

Dr Harry Yoxall (NV) 
Local Medical Committee 
(Observer) 

� � � � � � X � X � 



 
Somerset CCG COG Meetings 2014/15 – Attendance Record � = Present 

X = Apologies 

Given 
 
(V) = voting Member 
(NV) = non-voting 
Member 

 
2 

April 
2014 

 
7 

May 
2014 

 
11 

June 
2014 

 
9 

July 
2014 

 
6 

Aug 
2014 

 
3 

Sept 
2014 

 
1 
Oct 
2014 

 
5 

Nov 
2014 

 
3 

Dec 
2014 

 
7 

Jan 
2015 

 
4 

Feb 
2015 

 
4 

Mar 
2015 

Dr Rosie Benneyworth (V) 
COG Chair and Taunton 
Deane Federation 
Delegate 

� � � � � � � X � � � � 

Dr Matthew Dolman (V) 
North Sedgemoor 
Federation Delegate 

� � � � � � � X � � � � 

Dr Ed Ford (V) West 
Somerset 
Health Federation 
Delegate 

� � � � X � � � � � X � 

Dr Stephen Gardiner (V) 
Bridgwater Bay Health 
Federation Delegate 

� X X � � � X � � � � � 

Dr Emma Keane (V) East 
Mendip Federation 
Delegate 

X � � � � X X X X X X � 

Dr Sarah Pearce (V) 
Chard, Crewkerne and 
Ilminster Federation 
Delegate 

� � � � � � � � � � � � 

Dr Iain Phillips (V) South 
Somerset Federation 
Delegate 

� � � � X � X � � � � � 

Dr Geoff Sharp (V) 
Central Mendip 
Federation Delegate 

 

X 
� � X X � X � � � � � 

Dr Michael Pearce (V)  
West Mendip Federation 
Delegate 

� � � � � X � � � � � � 

Lisa Wallis (V) 
Practice Manager 
Delegate 

  � � � X � � � � � � 

David Slack (V) 
Managing Director/ 
Accountable Officer 

� � � � � � � � � � � � 

Paul Goodwin (V) 
Chief Finance Officer and 
Director of Performance 
(secondment from 
September) 

� � � � � �       

Alison Henly (V) 
Acting Chief Finance 
Officer, Director of 
Performance & Acute 
Commissioning (with 
effect from September) 
 

       � � � � � 

Lucy Watson (V) 
Director of Quality, Safety 
and Governance 

� � � � � X � � � � X � 



Ann Anderson (V) 
Director of Clinical and 
Collaborative 
Commissioning 

� � � � � X � X X � � X 

Clare Steel (V) Lead 
Commissioner Adults & 
Health (DASS) Somerset 
County Council 

� X X X � X � X     

Kim Curry (V) Interim 
DASS & Lead 
Commissioner for Adults 
& Health, deputizing for 
Claire Steel 

       X � X X X 

Dr Nick Bray (NV) GP & 
LMC Representative 

� � � � � X � � � � � � 

Chris Simpson (NV) 
Lay Member 

� � � � � � � � � � � � 

Dr Victoria Downing-Burn 
(NV) 
Director Strategy and 
Patient Engagement – left 
August 2014 

� X X X         

Sue Glanfield (NV) Head 
of Service Development 
and Clinical Engagement 

         � X � 

Andrew Hill (NV) Head of 
Federation 
Commissioning 

� � � � X � � � � X � X 

Dr John Trepess Taunton 
Deane General Practice 
Federation Delegate 
(Designate –NV) 

          � � 

 
 



AUDIT COMMITTEE Meetings 2014/15 – Attendance Record 

 

Name Member (M)/ In 
Attendance (A) 

28 May  
2014 

6 November 
2014 

25 February 
2015 

Lou Evans 
Audit Committee 
Chair 

M � � � 

Dr Ian Lewin 
Specialist Doctor 

M � X X 

Carolyn Moore 
Registered Nurse 

M � � � 

Dr Geoff Sharp 
GP Member 

M � � � 

Paul Goodwin 
Chief Finance 
Officer and 
Director of 
Performance 
(secondment from 
September 2014) 

A �   

Alison Henly 
Interim Chief 
Finance Officer 
and Director of 
Performance and 
Acute 
Commissioning 
(with effect from 
September 2014) 

A  � � 

 
Representatives from External and Audit Internal and Counter Fraud were present at 
meetings throughout the year, with other representatives attending as required. 

 

  



 
 Somerset CCG Governance Committee Meetings 2014/15 – 

Attendance Record 

� = Present 

X = Apologies 

Given 

(M) Committee member 

(A) In attendance 

14 May 

2014 

30 Jul 

2014 

29 Sep 

2014^ 

29 Oct 

2014 

11 Feb 

2015 
  

Dr Matthew Dolman (M), 

(Chair) 

CCG Chairman 

� X � � �   

Ann Anderson (M) 

Director of Clinical  and 

Collaborative 

Commissioning 

X � ***** **** *****   

Dr Rosie Benneyworth 

(M) 

Chair of Clinical 

Operations Group 

X � � X X  

Dr Victoria Downing-

Burn (M) 

Director Strategy and 

Patient Engagement 

� * * * *   

Lou Evans (M) 

Governing Body Lay 

Member: Governance 

and Audit 

� X X � �   

Paul Goodwin (M) 

Chief Finance Officer 

and Director of 

Performance  
(secondment from 

September 2014) 

� X X ** **   

Alison Henly 

Interim Chief Finance 

Officer and Director of 

Performance and Acute 

Commissioning 
(with effect from September 

2014) 

 
� X � �  

Dr Ian Lewin (M) 

Specialist Doctor 
X � � � �   

Carolyn Moore (M) 

Registered Nurse 
X � � � �   

Peter Osborne (A) 

Head of Corporate 
� X X � �   



Governance 

Dr Iain Phillips (M) 

Governing Body and 

Clinical Operations 

Group GP Member 

*** � X � �  

David Slack (M) 

Managing 

Director/Accountable 

Officer 

� � � � �   

Karen Taylor (A) 

Head of Patient Safety 

and Risk Management 

� � � X �   

Eilleen Tipper (M) 

Governing Body Lay 

Member: PPE 

� � � � �   

Lucy Watson (M) 

Director of Quality and 

Patient Safety 

� � � � �   

 

* Dr Victoria Downing-Burn left the CCG in August 2014. 
** Paul Goodwin took a secondment post with NHS England from September 2014 
to March 2015, Alison Henly became Interim Chief Finance Officer & Director of 
Director of Performance & Acute Commissioning 
*** Dr Iain Phillips became a member of the Governance Committee from July 2014 
**** Claire Higdon, Deputy Director of Clinical and Collaborative Commissioning 
attended on behalf of Ann Anderson 
***** Tim Archer, Associate Director of Strategic Planning and Joint Commissioning 
attended on behalf of Ann Anderson 
^ An extraordinary meeting of the Governance Committee was held on 29 
September 2014 to receive and discuss a formal investigation report following a 
mental health homicide 
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� = Present 

X = Apologies Given 

V = voting 

NV = non-voting 

20.05.14 16.07.14 17.09.14 26.03.15 

 
Lou Evans (V) 
Remuneration Committee 
Chair 

� 
� � � 

 
Eilleen Tipper (V) 
Remuneration Committee Vice 
Chair 

� � � � 

 
Dr Ian Lewin (V) 
Specialist Doctor 

� � � � 

 
Carolyn Moore (V) 
Registered Nurse 

� � � � 

 
David Slack (NV) 
Managing Director/ 
Accountable Officer 

� � � � 

 
Victoria Downing-Burn (NV) 
Director of Strategy and 
Patient Engagement 

�    

 
Marianne King (NV) 
Head of HR 

 � � � 

 
 
 




